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OVERVIEW

Subscription and transactional revenues
represented 80% of total revenues (FY14: 67%),
demonstrating the positive impact of the recurring
business model
Cash position of £4.3m (2014: £2.3m)

OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS:
Over 60 new customer and brand wins including
major contracts with Sainsbury’s and Asda for
the deployment of Eagle Eye AIR in both grocers’
UK stores
Redemption volumes up 118% in the Period
to 17.4m (2014: 8.0m)
Messaging volumes increased
to 40.1m (2014: 31.6m)
Significant two year contract renewal
with Ladbrokes for SMS services
Four new EPOS partners signed: Toshiba,
K3, Zonal and Comtrex
Launch of third generation Eagle Eye AIR platform
with enhanced functionality and reporting
Release of Eagle Eye Promote for the management
of offers and promotions for FMCG brands, with
17 FMCG brands now signed to the
Eagle Eye AIR platform
Three industry awards for Greggs Rewards app
New partnership signed with the leading business
intelligence and data analytics company SAS
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Subscription and
transactional revenues represented

EIGHTY %

Governance

Gross profit grew to £3.5m (2014: £1.4m),
which represents a gross margin of 71%

(FY14: £1.8m)

of total revenues (FY14: 67%)
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Organic revenue increased by 93% to £2.7m
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Shareholder information

Group revenue increased 165% to £4.9m
(FY14: £1.8m)

Group revenue increased

NEW

FINANCIAL AND CORPORATE HIGHLIGHTS:

Over

Our vision is to be
the leading digital
marketing platform
for the grocery,
retail and hospitality
industries.

Why we do it

Our technology powers targeted and
secure digital promotions and rewards,
transforming the way brands and
merchants engage with consumers.

Our Eagle Eye AIR platform creates a network effect

Through our four products and this network we enable

between merchants, distributors and brands enabling

brands and merchants to reduce costs, improve their

stronger connections and value to all parties.

customer offer and accelerate their innovation.

Customer tracking
and data capture

Eliminate
fraudulent activity

Increase
operational KPIs

Lower
operational costs

Eagle Eye AIR is our market-leading, multi-patented

your customers swiftly and securely by email, text or via

software platform.

a loyalty app for instant redemption.

Able to integrate seamlessly with all existing POS systems,

Eagle Eye AIR encompasses 4 main products which

Eagle Eye AIR lets you create compelling digital offers,

can be used separately or together depending on

rewards and vouchers in real-time - then deliver them to

your need:

Shareholder information

How we do it

AIR Dashboard
PROMOTE
GIFT

4 CORE PRODUCTS

ONE PLATFORM
Promotion and
offer management

COMPLETE SYSTEM

REWARD
ENGANGE

1

CRM

Coupon

CRM
Data warehouse

Loyalty and
staff incentive schemes

3

Back office

PLATFORM API

2

MANAGEMENT API
Stored Value
Points
Basket Analysis
Broadcast
Analyse
Report
Distribute

ISSUANCE API / CONSUMER API

Email

Gift cards and
customer care

REDEMPTION API

Digital messaging –
SMS, Email, Whitelabel app

Point of sale

Mobile

SMS
Apps
WiFi
Beacons
Coupon at till
eReceipts

4
Web
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Self check out

Mobile
Networks
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A day in the life of Eagle Eye Air

Consumer visits Greggs on their way
to work for a Coffee. Using their
Greggs Rewards App they can pay,
get a coffee stamp and receive instant
offers and rewards through
one tap (NFC) or scan.

10:32

15:23

18:03

08:26

Code Generated
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12:47

On their way home from work the
consumer receives an offer via push
notification for a ‘free pint with main
meal’ using their Hop Circle App and
goes to the nearest Nicholson’s
to redeem it.

Whilst at home the consumer
plans their weekend activities
by exchanging their Tesco
Clubcard points online for a
days out voucher.

21:14

Basket Analysed

Code Verified

Code Redeemed

Data Captured

Insight Provided
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Mid morning the consumer walks
past a local One Stop and receives a
notification via an iBeacon, through the
One Stop app, offering a free bottle
of Coke Zero and goes inside
to redeem it.

During lunch the consumer takes
advantage of a 25% off meal coupon
in their Prezzo App, generated from
Eagle Eye AIR.

At work the consumer orders cat food
through petsathome.com and selects
the deliver to store option. They
receive a code via email or SMS to
be presented at till upon collection.

Governance

A consumer journey
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Group revenue
INCREASED

165% million
to

£4.9

FOUR

NEW

New partners

EPOS taking
count to
6 of
partners

top 10

The adjusted EBITDA loss was £1.5 million (2014: £0.8
million loss). The Group’s gross profit was £3.5 million,
representing a gross margin of 71% (2014: £1.4 million,
78%). The Group has a robust balance sheet with net assets
of £8.8 million (2014: £7.8 million), including cash and cash
equivalents of £4.3 million (2014: £2.3 million).

As well as new customer wins, during the year we signed
important new strategic partnerships with Toshiba, K3,
Zonal and Comtrex, taking our list of electronic point-ofsale (“EPOS”) partners to six of the top ten providers. This
will accelerate the adoption of Eagle Eye’s technology in
the retail and hospitality industries and also gives us a
springboard to enter new international markets. In March
2015, we signed a contract with our first international
customer, VF Corporation, to whom we have provided a
digital gift solution covering 11 countries and 13 brands,
including Gant, Wrangler and North Face.

The Company assembled a deeply experienced Board of
Non-Executives ahead of the 2014 IPO and this has been
complemented by a talented and ambitious management
team that has benefited from their advice and experience
to position the business for continued growth. In addition
to the arrival of Lucy Sharman-Munday as CFO in July
2014, the management team has been strengthened by the
recruitment of a new Sales Director, Abeed Janmohamed,
in May 2015. Employees have risen in number, from an
average 29 in 2014 to 56 at the end of the year, primarily to
extend the functionality of the AIR platform and give us the
resources to meet our aggressive sales target.

Redemption volumes crossing our network continued to
surge, growing by 118% in the period to 17.4 million (2014:
8.0 million). Overall the number of customers and brands on
the platform increased significantly from 90 to 156.
Underpinning this strong progress is our continued
investment in, and substantial development of, the Eagle
Eye AIR platform. This included the introduction during the
period of new functionality to fully support the promotional
activity of our supermarket customers; the creation, issuing
and tracking of marketing campaigns by FMCG companies;
and full support for multi-language and multi-currency
customers.
To take advantage of the major market opportunity both in
the UK and internationally, in March 2015 we completed a
successful fundraise at a price 22% above the Company’s
initial flotation price. This raised approximately £4.0
million (before expenses) which we will continue to use
to accelerate both sales and marketing investment and to
further expand the platform’s capabilities.

FINANCIAL RESULTS
Group revenue increased by 165% to £4.9 million (2014:
£1.8 million) for the period. Of total revenue, £2.1 million
was contributed by 12 months of revenue from the 2ergo
acquisition which completed in the middle of April 2014.
Excluding 2ergo, organic revenue increased by 93%
to £2.7 million.

It is a credit to the management team that this expansion
has been achieved successfully with the creation of a high
achieving, innovative culture that gives me confidence in the
delivery of our targets and goals.
On behalf of the Board, I want to thank the team for their
dedication, hard work and success in further building the
platform for future growth.

OUTLOOK
The adoption of our software platform by two Tier 1 grocers
is strong evidence that our vision of migrating the market
for promotions and marketing from analogue to digital is
attainable. We have strong first mover advantage in a
rapidly growing market and the Board believes that now the
breakthrough has been made into the UK grocery sector
the flow of customers to the Eagle Eye AIR platform will
accelerate. This is expected to drive significant subscription
and transactional revenue growth, giving the business
a strong foundation to dominate the market and expand
internationally. The Board remains excited and confident
about the future.
Bob Willett
Chairman

O ve r

New Wins
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60
NEW

customer and
brands on
the platform
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BOB WILLETT
Chairman

These important wins clearly demonstrate that Eagle Eye
is at the centre of a major change in the grocery, retail and
hospitality industries as we transform customer engagement
from the analogue world of yesterday to the digital world
of today. Revenue growth of 165%, which excludes any
transactional contribution from these two major contract
wins, demonstrates the outstanding underlying momentum
in the business.

Shareholder information

“This has been a
breakthrough year for
Eagle Eye with the
business delivering
excellent progress against
its strategy to become
the global leader in digital
marketing. This included
the award of two significant
contracts with Tier 1
grocery companies, ASDA
and Sainsbury’s.”

Strategic Report
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CHAIRMAN’S REPORT

STRATEGIC REPORT

We are extremely pleased with our progress during the
year, with total revenue of £4.9 million being up 165%, the
expansion of the customer base, including our first wins
in the UK grocery sector, the launch of our 3rd generation
software platform, Eagle Eye AIR, and the signing of
17 FMCG brands to the platform.

Our mission is to be the global leader in digital marketing,
and in 2014 we set the goal of securing our position as the
UK leader. We believe that this has been achieved during the
year through our two major contracts in the grocery sector
coupled with the other significant customer wins. Over the next
couple of years, we anticipate at least a third of the UK digital
promotions market will transition to our technology.

The major contract wins with ASDA and Sainsbury’s
demonstrate the compelling sales proposition we have
developed as well as the strength of our market-leading
technology. It also confirms that the mainstream shift to
digital promotions – replacing their paper equivalents – is
well underway and we are at the heart of this transformation.
This is the breakthrough we have worked towards and gives
us a very exciting future.

MARKET OVERVIEW
Eagle Eye’s primary addressable market is promotional
marketing, which includes promotions and shopper
marketing. In combination, in the UK alone promotional
marketing is worth £55bn per annum. So far only a small
fraction of this spend, less than 5%, has moved to digital
promotions with the vast majority still devoted to analogue
promotions. Despite broader, established shifts across
society to digital communications, the major hurdle to
adoption in the promotions industry has been the ability
for retailers to cope with real-time redemption of digital
promotions at the point of sale in their bricks and mortar
retail stores. Consequently, most promotions remain paperbased and rely on inefficient and after-the-event validation.
This can lead to significant costs to the customer and fraud.

Phill Blundell
Chief Executive Officer

Shopper marketing spend remains focused on in-store
discounts that, when redeemed by consumers, are not
tracked back to retailers and brands. This means that the
retailers and brands that are offering the discounts do
not get a full picture of which consumers are using their
discounts and whether they are generating the required
return on investment.
It is our vision that with Eagle Eye’s solution to the issue of
real-time redemption in stores, digital marketing spend will
migrate to a more efficient digital platform. We are already
seeing this in the hospitality industry where redemption
volumes of our customer discounts and promotions across
our platform increased 118% in the year to 17.4 million.
In the UK, the number of paper vouchers redeemed in the
grocery sector exceeded 1 billion in 2014, an increase of
21% on 2013, and we are confident that over the next few
years this volume will migrate to digital. Our new contracts
with ASDA and Sainsbury’s put us in prime position to grab
a large market share as part of this transition.

Redemption volumes
INCREASED
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118% million
to

£17.4

Expanding the customer base remains a key priority and
during the year we welcomed over 60 new merchants and
brands to the platform including ASDA, Gant, Garfunkel’s and
Young’s. Looking forward we have a number of high profile
UK customers including Sainsbury’s joining the platform
to create, issue and securely redeem promotions, rewards
and payments. Furthermore, our existing customers have
continued to embrace the opportunities offered by our platform
which is evidenced by a 118% increase in redemption volumes
to 17.4 million.
Growing the number of partners embedded on our platform
who conduct business on behalf of their clients is a priority
within our strategy. In the year, long-term contracts have
been signed with EPOS providers Comtrex and Zonal which,
combined with our existing Oracle partnership, means that we
now have access to over 75% of the casual dining market,
which is a fast growing segment of the hospitality sector.
Strengthened relationships with Toshiba and K3 will enable
the delivery of new customers in the retail sector as well as
helping to support the implementation of our international
strategy, as demonstrated by our collaboration with Toshiba for
the Eagle Eye AIR platform’s deployment in ASDA. Following
on from the recent Tier 1 grocer wins, SAS, the global data
analytics company, has signed a partnership agreement with
us to develop new big data products and we expect this to help
Eagle Eye grow in new geographies.
The biggest budgets in the digital marketing sector are owned
by the FMCG companies and it is now our objective to connect
them to our platform. The success of the Coke Zero campaign
run in May 2015, where MediaCom ran a promotional
campaign to give away Coke Zeros using unique digital codes
from Eagle Eye across nine issuance channels and 2,500 realtime redemption points in stores, has demonstrated the power
of our technology. MediaCom was able to track redemptions
by both individuals and by channel in real-time, enabling
them to divert marketing spend to the most effective channel
which resulted in a powerful 20% redemption rate, compared
to less than 5% in traditional campaigns. This has provided a
compelling case study in our effort to attract FMCG brands to
our platform and 17 brands are now signed up. We expect this
growth to accelerate in the next 12 months.
Innovation is a key priority as we continue to deliver value
to our customers. We have developed new functionality and
extended the number of products supported by the software
platform. The launch of the third generation platform, Eagle
Eye AIR, 12 months ago saw us leapfrog our competitors and
we have continued to invest ever since. Our guiding principles
are More, Easier and Faster.
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CONTINUED STRONG STRATEGIC PROGRESS
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A BREAKTHROUGH YEAR
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“Our focus during the
period has been on
delivering organic growth
and further progress
against our stated strategic
goal to become the global
leader in digital marketing.”

Overview

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT

Shareholder information

STRATEGIC REPORT

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The ‘Easier’ means providing tools to simplify the integration
process for partners and customers and providing selfservice tools to allow customers to create, issue, and
analyse in real-time their own digital marketing campaigns.
It also means making it easier for the end consumer
to engage with their favourite brands, which we have
enabled by developing advanced rulesets around location,
demographic and historical information, which enables our
customers to set up campaigns that are more personalised
making the user experience more enjoyable and relevant.
Finally, ‘Faster’ means scaling the platform to support the
Tier 1 grocers’ expanded needs. This allows much higher
volumes to be processed with improved performance both
at the transactional and reporting levels. For example, we
are now able to analyse every basket within a Tier 1 grocer
in real-time in under one second, making our customers’
experience simple, fast and seamless.
The confirmation of the quality of our technology is further
evidenced by three further major industry awards won in the
period. At the Payments Awards, we were overall winner
and winner of the Engagement and Loyalty Scheme of the
Year and at the Retail Systems Awards we won Loyalty
Programme of the Year, all for our market-leading Greggs
Rewards loyalty platform.
The confidence gained through the rapid adoption of the
platform has allowed us to grow the team from an average
of 29 in 2014 to 56 at the end of the period. These new
additions have primarily strengthened our technical team
and our sales team. The increase in technical staff has
facilitated the enhancements to the software platform and
will allow for significant new IP in the coming year. The sales
team has been expanded from nine to 15 in anticipation of
the delivery of our aggressive revenue growth targets. I want
to put on record my thanks to all staff for their commitment,
skill and passion that have contributed to another highly
successful year.
Going forward we will be working with our existing
customers to make the most of the new platform, helping
them to engage more effectively with their consumers. This
is expected to lead to more transactions on the platform and
therefore higher subscriptions and transactional revenues
to us. Our new EPOS partners will help us recruit more
customers to the platform and also help us to expand
overseas.
Phill Blundell
Chief Executive Officer

Strategic Report

“The group generated
strong revenue growth
of 165% for the period,
with revenue increasing
to £4.9 million
(2014: £1.8 million).”

Governance

The ‘More’ means adding new features, which in the past
12 months has included personalised push notifications
to apps; location-based messaging using beacons; and
tools for creating dynamic campaigns. In addition, our four
core products, Promote, Gift, Reward and Engage were
transitioned to the new version of the platform and four
existing customers have already been migrated to AIR
with enhanced functionality.

Financial Statements

CONTINUED

Overview

STRATEGIC REPORT

Lucy Sharman-Munday
Chief Financial Officer

GROUP RESULTS
Of the total revenue for 2015, £2.1 million (2014: £0.4
million) was contributed by 12 months of revenue from the
2ergo Limited (“2ergo”) acquisition which completed in the
middle of April 2014. Excluding 2ergo, organic revenue
increased by 93% to £2.7 million (2014: £1.4 million)
demonstrating the attraction of our proven technology
that delivers key benefits to our customers including an
enhanced consumer experience, significant operational
cost savings and accelerated innovation.
£3.9 million of revenue generated from subscriptions
fees and transactions over the network represent 80% of
total revenue (2014: 67%, £1.2 million). This positive 13
percentage points year-on-year growth in revenue mix is
in-line with our recurring subscription business model with
limited upfront licence fees. The balance, £1.0 million,
relates to implementation fees for new customers and new
services and represents 20% of total revenue (2014: 33%,
£0.6 million).
Existing customers continue to derive benefits from Eagle
Eye’s platform, which is demonstrated by the growth in
redemption volumes crossing our network, up 118% in the
period to 17.4 million (2014: 8.0 million). Messaging volumes
at the now fully integrated 2ergo business increased to over
40.1 million (2014: 31.6 million), further evidencing
the success of the acquisition and its integration.

78% to 71% in 2015 as gross profit grew to £3.5 million (2014:
£1.4 million). The core gross margin increased from 83% to
87%, the fall in overall margin was driven by the increased
level of lower gross margin campaign manager and SMS
revenue in the Company’s revenue mix as a result of a full
year’s revenue from 2ergo.

OPERATING COSTS
Operating costs of £5.6 million (2014: £2.6 million) increased
in line with expectations reflecting our planned strategic
growth. Operating costs include sales and marketing, product
development, operational IT, general, administration and
share based payment costs. Gross expenditure on product
development increased 50% to £1.2 million (2014: £0.8
million) reflecting our investment to enhance the capabilities
of our platform. Capitalised product development costs
at £1.0 million (2014: £0.6 million) represented 76% of
gross development spend whilst amortisation of capitalised
development costs was £1.4 million (2014: £0.5 million).

EBITDA
Group-adjusted EBITDA loss for the period was £1.5 million
(2014: loss £0.8 million). To provide a better guide to the
underlying business performance adjusted EBITDA excludes
share-based payment charges and one off acquisition costs
along with depreciation, amortisation, interest and tax from
the measure of profit.

The increased revenue was achieved without a significant
impact on gross margin. The gross margin reduced from
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In March 2015 the Company completed a successful placing
of 2,013,114 new shares that raised approximately £4 million
(before expenses) and placed 994,512 existing shares. The
net proceeds of the placing of the new shares are being
used to accelerate investment in product development and
infrastructure and to increase sales and marketing resources
in order to capitalise on the market opportunity and drive
international expansion.

Evolution of the market

EPS AND DIVIDEND
Reported basic and diluted loss per share was 16.17p
(2014: loss per share 10.65p). The Board does not feel it
appropriate at this time to commence paying dividends.

BALANCE SHEET, CASH AND CASH FLOW
The Group has a robust balance sheet with net assets of
£8.8 million at 30 June 2015 (2014: £7.8 million), including
cash and cash equivalents of £4.3 million (2014: £2.3
million). The placing of the new shares has strengthened the
balance sheet further during the year.
The main components to the gross cash increase of £2.0
million for the period (2014: £0.9 million increase) were
operating cash outflow of £0.8 million (2014: £1.3 million),
capital investment in intangibles including product and
development of £1.0 million (2014: £0.6 million) and the net
receipts from the new share placing of £3.8 million (2014:
£5.0 million).

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
The primary financial key performance indicators for the
Group are revenue, EBITDA and the Group’s cash balances,
all of which are reported monthly to the Board and forecast
to the end of the reporting period.
2015
£000

2014
£000

Revenue

4,854

1,835

EBITDA loss

(1,521)

Cash and cash equivalents

4,292

(817)
2,275

The primary non-financial key performance indicators are
the number of redemptions, messaging volumes, percentage
of subscription and transactional revenue and the number of
customers and brands on our platform.
2015

2014

Number of redemptions

17.4m

8.0m

Like for like messaging
volumes

40.1m

31.6m

80%

67%

156

90

% of subscription
transaction revenue
Customers and brands on
the platform
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The Group operates in an evolving market and there is a
possibility that the rate of growth in mobile commerce will
not match independent predictions or that users of mobile
devices will change their behaviour with respect to mobile
commerce. The Group’s services are new and evolving
and it is difficult to predict the future growth rates, if any,
and the size of these markets. Even if the market for the
Group’s products develops as anticipated, the Group may
face severe competition from other businesses offering
similar products and services and there can therefore be no
assurance that the Group will be able to secure customers
for its products and services on acceptable terms and
conditions, or successfully adjust the Group’s strategy
to meet the changing market dynamics.
Technological changes could overtake the products
being developed by the Group
The Group’s business is dependent upon technology
which could be superseded by superior technology, more
competitively priced technology or a shift in retail practices
which could affect both the potential profitability and the
saleability of the Group’s product offering. Staying abreast of
technological changes may require substantial investment.
The Group’s existing software products need to develop
continually in order to meet customer requirements.
The Group may encounter delays and incur additional
development and production costs and expenses, over and
above those expected by the Directors, in order to develop
suitable technologies and products. The technology used in
the Group’s products is still evolving and is highly complex
and may change rapidly. Research and development by
other companies may render any of the Group’s products in
development, or currently available, obsolete.
Protection of intellectual property
The Group’s success and ability to compete effectively are
in large part dependent upon exploitation of proprietary
technologies and products that the Group has developed
internally, the Group’s ability to protect and enforce its
intellectual property rights so as to preserve its exclusive
rights in respect of those technologies and products, and
its ability to preserve the confidentiality of its know-how.
The Group relies primarily on enforcement of its pending
and granted patents under applicable patent laws and
non-disclosure agreements to protect its intellectual
property rights. No assurance can be given that the Group
will develop further technologies or products which are
patentable or that patents will be sufficiently broad in their
scope to provide protection for the Group’s intellectual
property rights against third parties.
Patents pending or future patent applications may not
be granted and the lack of any such patents may have a
material adverse effect on the Group’s ability to develop
and market its proposed products. Where patents have
been granted the Group may not have the resources to
protect any such issued patent from infringement. There
is a significant delay between the time of filing of a patent
application and the time its contents are made public,

and others may have filed patent applications for subject
matter covered by the Group’s pending patent applications
without the Group being aware of those applications.
The Group’s patent applications may not have priority
over patent applications of others and its pending patent
applications may not result in issued patents. Even if the
Group obtains patents, they may not be valid or enforceable
against others. Moreover, even if the Group receives patent
protection for some or all of its products, those patents may
not give the Group an advantage over competitors with
similar products. Furthermore, the Group cannot patent
much of the technology that is important to its business. If
the Group fails to obtain adequate access to, or protection
for, the intellectual property required to pursue its strategy,
the Group’s competitors may be able to take advantage of
the Group’s research and development efforts.
Once granted, a patent can be challenged both in the
patent office and in the courts by third parties. Third parties
can bring material and arguments which the patent office
granting the patent may not have seen. Therefore, issued
patents may be found by a court of law or by the patent
office to be invalid or unenforceable or in need of further
restriction.
Product risk
The Group’s business involves providing customers with
highly reliable software and services. If the software or
services contain undetected defects when first introduced
or enhanced, the Group may fail to meet its customers’
performance requirements or otherwise satisfy the contract
specifications. As a result, it may lose customers and/or
may become liable to them for damages. Whilst the Group
has liability insurance in place and endeavours to negotiate
limitations on its liability in its customer contracts, this is not
always commercially possible. Additionally, the Group is
committed to developing products for its customers on a set
timeline. However, the pace of progress of the development
projects may not be as expected and the Group could fail to
meet its customers’ timing or performance requirements. As
a result of these risks, the Group may lose customers, may
become liable to those customers for damages and may
suffer damage to its reputation.
The Group has service level commitment obligations
with some of its customers in which it provides various
guarantees regarding levels of service. The Group may not
be able to meet these levels of service due to a variety of
factors, both inside and outside the Group’s control. If the
Group fails to provide the levels of service required by the
agreements, such customers may be entitled to terminate
their contracts or may choose not to enter into new work
orders with the Group and this may also damage the
Group’s reputation and reduce the confidence of the Group’s
customers in its software and services, impairing its ability to
retain existing customers and attract new customers.
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Security breach and fraud may also lead to regulatory
investigations, sanctions (including fines) and litigation
with clients and consumers. Any regulatory investigation or
litigation may be costly and may divert efforts and attention
of the Group’s key management and other personnel
and resources, may cause wider reputational damage to
the Group and may result in existing clients terminating
contracts and deter potential new clients from becoming
actual clients.

Disaster recovery plans may not be sufficient

In line with its ISO 27001 accredited procedures, the Group
use a third party security and data compliance service to
monitor and mitigate against this risk in addition to client
specific security testing.

The Group depends on the performance, reliability and
availability of its properties and information technology
services. The Group may not be able to access its facilities
as a result of events beyond the control of the Group, such as
extreme weather conditions, flood, fire, theft or terrorist action.
Any damage to or failure of its equipment and/or systems
could also result in disruptions to the Group’s operations. The
Group’s disaster recovery plans may not adequately address
every potential event and its insurance policies may not cover
any loss in full or damage that it suffers fully. The occurrence
of one or more of these events could have a material adverse
effect on the Group’s business, financial position or prospects.

Dependence on key customers and partners

Litigation risk

The Group is dependent on a number of key contracts and
partner relationships for its current and future growth and
development. The Group must continue to maintain and
expand its integration into retailers’ in-store and point of
sale systems in order to increase the attractiveness of the
Group’s products and software to consumer brands, allowing
the Group to increase revenues and achieve profitability.
If consumer brands do not perceive that the Group is able
to be integrated into a broad range of retailers’ in-store or
point of sale systems, then the Group may fail in attracting or
retaining consumer brands. If this were to happen, there may
be a detrimental effect upon the performance of the Group.
Although the relative proportions are decreasing, a limited
number of clients continue to account for a large percentage
of the Group’s revenue. Whilst the Group endeavours to
enter and renew long term agreements with its clients,
there can be no assurance that clients will be secured on
acceptable terms and conditions.

Whilst the Group has taken, and will continue to take, such
precautions as it regards appropriate to avoid or minimise the
likelihood of any legal proceedings or claims, or any resulting
financial loss to the Group, the Directors cannot preclude
the possibility of litigation being brought against the Group.
There can be no assurance that claimants in any litigation
proceedings will not be able to devote substantially greater
financial resources to such litigation proceedings or that the
Group will prevail in any such litigation. Any litigation, whether
or not determined in the Group’s favour or settled by the
Group, may be costly and may divert the efforts and attention
of the Group’s management and other personnel from normal
business operations.

Staff recruitment and retention
The ability to continue to attract and retain employees
with the appropriate expertise and skills cannot be
guaranteed. Finding and hiring any additional personnel
and replacements could be costly and might require the
Group to grant significant equity awards or other incentive
compensation, which could adversely impact its financial
results. The Group’s future development and prospects
depend to a significant degree on the experience,
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EMPLOYEE INVOLVEMENT
The Group recognises and seeks to encourage the
involvement of its employees, with the aim being the
recruitment, motivation and retention of quality employees
throughout the Group. The Group encourages employee
performance through their remuneration packages, including
by granting share options, and ensures that employees are
fully aware of financial and economic factors affecting the
performance of the Group.

Governance

Security breach and fraud remain key concerns in the online
payments world and any security breach or fraud event
might deter consumers from purchasing goods via online
voucher and offer content. Any move away from the mobile
channel for purchasing goods would have a negative impact
on the Group’s growth prospects and revenues.

its affairs to the highest ethical standards. We expect our
customers and suppliers to embrace these same principles.
The Group values teamwork, taking personal responsibility,
positive attitudes and working hard to deliver positive
outcomes for all our stakeholders- customers, staff and
shareholders alike. We encourage the personal learning,
growth and development of our team and voluntarily try to
eliminate practices that harm the environment.

Financial Statements

Any compromise of the Group’s systems, security breaches
or data loss may result in the temporary inability of the
Group to operate its services and clients’ mobile sites and
applications and therefore may have a detrimental impact on
the Group’s revenues, both directly through the inability of
the Group’s clients to trade or of the Group to authenticate
offers, and indirectly through loss of confidence in the
security of the Group’s platform.

performance and continued service of its senior management
team. Effective product development and innovation, upon
which the Group’s success is dependent, is in turn dependent
upon attracting and retaining talented technical and marketing
personnel, who represent a significant asset and serve as the
source of the Group’s technological and product innovations.
In addition, to continue to expand the Group’s customer base,
increase sales and achieve growth generally, the Group will
need to hire additional qualified sales personnel as well as
recruit further personnel in administrative and operational
support functions. If the Group is unable to hire, train and
retain such personnel in a timely manner an undue burden
could be placed on existing personnel, the development and
introduction of the Group’s products could be delayed and its
ability to sell its products and otherwise to grow its business
will be impaired and the delay and inability may have a
detrimental effect upon the performance of the Group.

The Group’s employment policies, including the commitment
to equal opportunity, are designed to attract, retain and
motivate employees regardless of sex, race, religion
or disability. Equality of treatment includes full and fair
assessment of applications and extends to training and
continuing career development.

Shareholder information

Online security breaches, data loss and Fraud

The Group is committed to ensuring and communicating the
requirements for a safe and healthy working environment
for all employees, consistent with health and safety
legislation and, where practicable, gives full consideration to
applications for employment from disabled persons.
By order of the board
Lucy Sharman-Munday
Company Secretary
5 New Street Square
London
EC4A 3TW
15 September 2015

Changes in applicable laws and regulations
Laws and regulations governing internet-based services,
related communication services and information technology,
e-commerce, the processing of personal data, the processing
of payment card data and mobile commerce in the United
Kingdom and other territories continue to evolve and,
depending on the evolution of such regulations, may
adversely affect the Group’s business.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
The Group embraces working in a way that delivers financial,
socially responsible and environmentally sustainable business
performance and ensures adherence to the law and conducts
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STEVE ROTHWELL
Founder and
Chief Technical Officer

LUCY SHARMAN-MUNDAY
Chief Financial Officer

BILL CURRIE
Non Executive Director A

SIR TERRY LEAHY
Non Executive Director

DREW THOMSON
Non Executive Director B

MALCOLM WALL
Non Executive Director A, B

Bob has an impressive track
record in multi channel retail
and technology industries
from hands on operational
roles in Marks & Spencer,
BestBuy, Kingfisher Group
and Littlewood’s Limited as
well as years of experience
as Global Managing Partner
of Accenture’s retail practice
and a member of the
Executive Committee. Bob
comes with significant global
retail and mobile experience
in a career in which he has
focused on the customer
experience, using customer
insights to drive improved
marketing decisions. In
particular, Bob developed
and led the successful
partnership with Carphone
Warehouse to form BestBuy
Mobile and was Chairman
of BestBuy Europe until his
retirement in January 2010.
He is currently Chairman
of Anatwine Ltd and
Houseology Ltd, and a NonExecutive Director of Mobile
World Vietnam. In addition,
he was appointed a Trustee
of The National Museum of
Computing, Bletchley Park
in 2013.

Phill joined the Group as
Commercial and Finance
Director in 2012, and is
responsible for driving
forward the commercial
growth and focus of the
Group. He was appointed
as Chief Executive Officer
in 2014. Prior to joining
Eagle Eye, Phill was the
Group Finance Director
and subsequently Chief
Executive Officer of
Intelligent Environments
Group plc, a digital banking
software company, which
was acquired by a US
private equity house and
consequently renamed
Parseq plc. He was Acting
CEO of Parseq when it was
acquired by funds controlled
by HarbourVest Partners,
LLC in 2011. He qualified
as a chartered accountant
with Coopers & Lybrand in
1988 and is a member of
the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England &
Wales. Phill has a BSc in
Economics from the London
School of Economics.

Steve founded the Group
in 2003, and is responsible
for the enlarged Group’s
vision, strategy, product
development and roadmap.
Prior to that, he was
the founder and Chief
Executive Officer of Eagle
Eye Technology Limited,
a software consultancy
business. Before that he was
a developer and consultant
for Consult Hyperion,
developing concepts in
the media and payments
industries, and a software
engineer for Ericsson. Steve
has a BEng in Electrical and
Electronic Engineering from
the University of Leicester.

Lucy joined the Group in July
2014. Prior to this, she was
the CFO of the 5one group,
the global consultancy
providing services,
analysis and software to
help retailers achieve a
customer-centric strategy.
The global role covered
Europe, South Africa and
setting up America. Prior to
this she worked for Adapt
Group Ltd, and in 2006
iSOFT plc as an integral
part of the turn-around
team that successfully sold
the business to IBA Health
Group at the end of 2007.
Lucy began her career at
KPMG in 1999 and is a
member of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in
England & Wales.

Bill joined the Group as a
non-executive director in
2011. He is the founder
of the William Currie
Group and William Currie
Investments, an investment
vehicle specialising in the
retail, ecommerce and
tech sectors. Previously
he was a top ranked
city investment analyst,
serving as Joint Managing
Director of Charterhouse
Securities and Director of
Research at BZW. His
current directorships include
Metapack Limited, Belvedere
Energy Investments and
LTS Group.

Sir Terry joined the Group
as a non-executive director
in 2011. Sir Terry completed
a 32 year career at Tesco
plc as Chief Executive
from 1997 to 2011. Leahy
received a Knighthood for
services to food retailing
in the 2002 New Year
Honours. He was chosen
as Britain’s “Business
Leader of the Year” in 2003
and the Fortune European
Businessman of the Year
for 2004. Since 2011 he has
focused on investments in
early-stage businesses. He
is a director of Metapack
Limited, the Social Mobility
Foundation and the
Foundation Years Trust and
is a Special Advisor to CD &
R, the US private equity firm.

Drew joined the Group as
a non-executive director
in 2014. He is a business
leader and entrepreneur
with a track record in
funding, creating, building
and growing international
businesses. Most recently
Drew was the Co-Founder
and Chief Executive of
Starcount. Prior to this he
was Executive Chairman
of Iris Worldwide where
he led the development
and international growth
of the Iris group business.
Previously to joining Iris,
Drew was a founding
partner of Paternoster, the
UK’s first defined benefit
pension scheme risk transfer
company. Before setting up
Paternoster, he was Chief
Executive of Airmiles
and BA Miles.

Malcolm joined the Group
as a non-executive director
in 2014. He was previously
CEO, and then advisor to
the board, of Abu Dhabi
Media Company. He is also
the former Chief Executive,
Content for Virgin Media
where he ran Virgin’s
television proposition, the
Virgin Media portal and
their television channel
groups. Malcolm joined
Virgin from United Business
Media, where he was
Chief Operating Officer.
He has also worked in
senior executive roles for a
number of ITV companies,
including Granada, Anglia
and Southern. Malcolm
is currently Chairman of
Audioboom plc, Dock10
Limited and Disciple Media
Limited. He is also a non
executive director of Image
Nation LLC.

Board Committee Membership
A - Audit Committee
B - Remuneration Committee
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PHILL BLUNDELL
Chief Executive Officer

Shareholder information

BOB WILLETT
Non Executive Chairman A
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GOVERNANCE

30 June 2015

The Strategic Report on pages 8 to 17 reports on the
Group’s performance during the financial year and its future
prospects. The information that fulfils the requirement of the
Business Review is contained within the Strategic Report
and is incorporated into this report by reference.

CORPORATE STATUS
Eagle Eye Solutions Group plc (the ‘Company’) is a public
limited company domiciled in the United Kingdom and was
incorporated in England & Wales with company number
8892109 on 12 February 2014. The Company has its
registered office at 5 New Street Square, London EC4A
3TW. The principal places of business of the Group are its
offices in Guildford and Manchester.

30 June 2014

Aggregate
emoluments
and fees

Short-term
benefits

£000

Phill Blundell

Pension costs

Aggregate
emoluments
and fees

Short-term
benefits

Pension costs

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

247

-

-

198

-

-

Steve Rothwell

185

-

-

120

-

-

Lucy Sharman-Munday

169

-

4

-

-

-

Bob Willett

42

-

-

-

-

-

Drew Thomson

35

-

-

9

-

-

Terry Leahy

5

-

-

2

-

-

Bill Currie

-

-

-

-

-

-

Malcolm Wall

35

-

-

9

-

-

718

-

4

338

-

-

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The directors hold the following share options:

DIRECTORS

Options over ordinary
shares of 1p each

Phill Blundell		
Steve Rothwell		

30 June 2015

30 June 2014

Lucy Sharman-Munday (appointed 17 July 2014)

Phill Blundell

226,574

226,574

Bob Willett		

Steve Rothwell

574,000

574,000

Lucy Sharman-Munday

125,000

-

(appointed 8 September 2014)

Drew Thomson		
Sir Terry Leahy		
Bill Currie		
Malcolm Wall		

The market price of the Company’s shares at the end of the
financial year was £2.025 and the range of the market price
during the year was between £1.425 and £2.215.

The Company has agreed to indemnify its directors against
third party claims which may be brought against them and
has put in place a directors’ and officers’ insurance policy.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDINGS

Principles of Corporate Governance
The Directors recognise the importance of sound corporate
governance and confirm that although compliance with the
UK Corporate Governance Code is not compulsory for AIM
companies, the Group is complying with the QCA Corporate
Governance Code (as devised by the QCA in consultation
with a number of significant institutional small company
investors) to the extent appropriate and practical for a
Group of its nature and size.
Board Structure
The Board is responsible to shareholders for the proper
management of the Group. A statement of directors’
responsibilities is set out on page 24.
The non-executive directors have a particular responsibility
to ensure that the strategies proposed by the executive
directors are fully considered.

At 14 September 2015, the directors have been notified
of the following beneficial interests in excess of 3% of the
issued share capital of the Company (excluding those
shares held in treasury).
Total shares

%

Bill Currie *

2,340,385

10.57

Andrew Sutcliffe

1,799,840

8.13

Steve Rothwell

1,711,672

7.73

Sir Terry Leahy *

1,677,030

7.57

Christopher Gorell Barnes

1,531,866

6.92

Hargreave Hale Limited

1,507,032

6.81

Julian Reiter

1,392,390

6.29

Inflection Point
Investments LLP

1,020,732

4.61

Timothy Miller

972,975

4.39

Herald Investments

877,318

3.96

Edward Pippin

855,000

3.86

The Board comprises of the Chairman, who was
independent at the time of appointment, three executive
directors and four non-executive directors. Of the nonexecutive directors, the Board considers two to be
independent directors. All non-executive directors receive
a fixed fee for their services, other than Bill Currie.
The Board holds regular meetings and is responsible for
formulating, reviewing and approving the Group’s strategy,
budgets and corporate actions and overseeing the Group’s
progress towards its goals.

*includes shares held by family members
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Remuneration in respect of the directors was as follows:

The principal activity of the Group is the marketing,
validation and redemption of digital promotions in real-time
for the grocery, retail and hospitality industries.

Strategic Report

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND SHARE OPTIONS

Financial Statements

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES, BUSINESS REVIEW
AND FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS
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Shareholder information

The Directors present
their annual report and
the audited consolidated
financial statements for the
year ended 30 June 2015.

Overview

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

GOVERNANCE

GOVERNANCE

The Board has two Committees with clearly defined terms
of reference which are set by the Board. The role, work and
members of the committees are outlined below:

The Directors are responsible for the Group’s system of
internal controls and reviewing its effectiveness.

Remuneration Committee
The Remuneration Committee is chaired by Malcolm Wall
and consists of two non-executive directors, Malcolm Wall
and Drew Thomson. It is expected to meet no less than
twice a year. Executive directors may attend meetings at
the Committee’s invitation. It is responsible for establishing
a formal and transparent procedure for developing policy
on executive remuneration and setting the remuneration
packages of individual directors. This includes agreeing
with the Board the framework for the remuneration of the
executive directors and such other members of the executive
management of the Group as it is designated to consider. It
is furthermore responsible for determining the total individual
remuneration packages of each individual director including,
where appropriate, bonuses, incentive payments and share
options.
The remuneration of non-executive directors is a matter for
the Board. No director may be involved in any decision as to
their own remuneration.
Audit Committee
The Audit Committee is chaired by Bill Currie, and consists
of three non-executive directors, Bill Currie, Bob Willett and
Malcolm Wall. The Committee assists the Board in meeting
its responsibilities in respect of corporate governance,
external financial reporting and internal controls, including,
amongst other things, reviewing the Group’s annual financial
statements, reviewing and monitoring the extent of the nonaudit services undertaken by external auditors, advising
on the appointment of external auditors and reviewing
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal controls and risk
management systems. The Audit Committee meets formally
not less than three times every year and otherwise as
required.
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Although, no system of internal control can completely
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives
or provide absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss, the Group’s controls are designed
to provide reasonable assurance over the reliability of
financial information and the Group’s assets.
The key controls are as follows:
• The executive directors have a close involvement
with the day to day operations and with the
involvement of staff, identify business risks and
monitor controls;
• A risk register is maintained and reviewed by the
executive directors on a regular basis; any high risks
are mitigated by embedded controls; and
• There is a comprehensive process of financial
reporting based on the annual budget that is
approved by the Board. Monthly financial results
are reported with analysis of key variances against
expectations.
There is currently no internal audit function as the
Board considers that given the Group’s current stage of
development, it is not necessary but this will be reviewed
annually as the Group evolves.
Relations with Shareholders
Meetings with analysts and institutional shareholders are
held following the interim and full year results and on an
ad-hoc basis. These meetings are usually held by the CEO
and the CFO.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

Details of the Group’s policy for the recognition of
expenditure on research and development of its Eagle Eye
Air platform and other products are set out in note 1 of the
consolidated financial statements.

The Group does not have any financing arrangements not
included in the consolidated statement of financial position.

SHARE CAPITAL
On 16 March 2015, the Company issued 2,013,114 1p
ordinary shares pursuant to a placing of its shares on AIM,
raising £4.0 million before costs of £0.2 million to accelerate
investment in product development and infrastructure and
increase sales and marketing resources to capitalise on the
market opportunity.

RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES

STATEMENT AS TO DISCLOSURE OF
INFORMATION TO THE AUDITOR
The directors who were in office on the date of approval
of these financial statements have confirmed that, as far
as they are aware, there is no relevant audit information of
which the auditor is unaware. Each of the directors have
confirmed that they have taken all the steps that they ought
to have taken as directors in order to make themselves
aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that
it has been communicated to the auditor.

AUDITOR

Details of the Group’s financial risk management objectives
and policies are set out in note 13 of the consolidated
financial statements. The key non-financial risks that the
Group faces are set out on pages 15 and 16 of the
Strategic Report.

Baker Tilly UK Audit LLP were appointed for the year
ended 30 June 2015 and have indicated their willingness to
continue in office.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Details of the Group’s transactions and year end balances
with related parties are set out in note 18 of the consolidated
financial statements.

Lucy Sharman-Munday
Company Secretary
5 New Street Square
London
EC4A 3TW

DIVIDENDS

15 September 2015

By order of the board

The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend.

SUPPLIER PAYMENT POLICY

The Group’s informative website contains information to
be of interest to new and existing investors. In addition, the
Group retains the services of a financial PR consultancy,
providing an additional contact avenue for investors.

It is the Group’s policy to pay its suppliers in accordance
with the terms and conditions agreed in advance of each
transaction once satisfactory performance of service or
receipt of goods has been achieved.

There is an opportunity at the annual general meeting for
individual shareholders to raise general business matters.
Notice of the annual general meeting is provided at least 21
days in advance of the meeting being held.

Group creditor days at the year end were 67 days
(2014: 51 days) of average supplies for the year.

Governance

Internal Control and risk management

Shareholder information

Board Committees

Financial Statements

CONTINUED

Strategic Report

Overview

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The directors are responsible for preparing the Strategic
Report and the Directors’ Report and the financial
statements in accordance with applicable law and
regulations.

We have audited the group and parent company financial
statements (“the financial statements”) on pages 26 to 49.
The financial reporting framework that has been applied
in the preparation of the group financial statements is
applicable law and International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union.
The financial reporting framework that has been applied in
the preparation of the parent company financial statements
is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards
(United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

Under company law the directors must not approve the
financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the group and
the company and of the profit or loss of the group and the
company for that period.
In preparing each of the group and company financial
statements, the directors are required to:
a. select suitable accounting policies and then apply
them consistently;
b. make judgements and accounting estimates that are
reasonable and prudent;

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and
integrity of the corporate and financial information included
on the Group’s website.
Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation
and dissemination of financial statements may differ from
legislation in other jurisdictions.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor
As more fully explained in the Statement of directors’
responsibilities set out on page 24, the directors are
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements
and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view.
Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the
financial statements in accordance with applicable law and
International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those
standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices
Board’s (APB’s) Ethical Standards for Auditors.
Scope of the audit of the financial statements
A description of the scope of an audit of financial statements
is provided on the Financial Reporting Council’s website at
http://www.frc.org.uk/auditscopeukprivate.
Opinion on financial statements
In our opinion:
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•

the financial statements give a true and fair view of
the state of the Group’s and of the parent company’s
affairs as at 30 June 2015 and of the Group’s loss for
the year then ended;

•

the group financial statements have been properly
prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by
the European Union;

•

the parent company financial statements have
been properly prepared in accordance with United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice; and

•

the financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with the requirements of the Companies
Act 2006.

In our opinion the information given in the Strategic Report
and the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which
the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the
financial statements.

Strategic Report

Companies Act 2006

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters
where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you
if, in our opinion:
•

adequate accounting records have not been kept by
the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit
have not been received from branches not visited by
us; or

•

the parent company financial statements are not in
agreement with the accounting records
and returns; or

•

certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration
specified by law are not made; or

•

we have not received all the information and
explanations we require for our audit.

GRAHAM BOND FCA (Senior Statutory Auditor)
For and on behalf of
BAKER TILLY UK AUDIT LLP, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants
Ninth Floor,
3 Hardman Street,
Manchester
M3 3HF
15 September 2015
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The directors are responsible for keeping adequate
accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the group’s and the company’s transactions and disclose
with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position
of the group and the company and enable them to ensure
that the financial statements comply with the Companies
Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the
assets of the group and the company and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud
and other irregularities.

This report is made solely to the Company’s members,
as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken
so that we might state to the Company’s members those
matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s
report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility
to anyone other than the Company and the Company’s
members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for
the opinions we have formed.

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the

Financial Statements

The group financial statements are required by law and IFRS
adopted by the EU to present fairly the financial position and
performance of the group; the Companies Act 2006 provides
in relation to such financial statements that references in
the relevant part of that Act to financial statements giving
a true and fair view are references to their achieving a fair
presentation.

d. prepare the financial statements on the going
concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume
that the group and the company will continue in
business.

TO THE MEMBERS OF EAGLE EYE SOLUTIONS GROUP PLC

Shareholder information

Company law requires the directors to prepare group and
company financial statements for each financial year. The
directors are required by the AIM Rules of the London
Stock Exchange to prepare group financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRS”) as adopted by the European Union (“EU”) and have
elected under company law to prepare the company financial
statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting
Standards and applicable law).

c. for the group financial statements, state whether
they have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs
adopted by the EU and for the company financial
statements state whether applicable UK accounting
standards have been followed, subject to any
material departures disclosed and explained in the
company financial statements;

Overview

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF TOTAL
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Overview

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS AT 30 JUNE 2015

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

2015
£000

2014
£000

Intangible assets

7

5,206

5,647

Property, plant and equipment

8

53

78

5,259

5,725

1,417

1,353

-

61

4,292

2,275

5,709

3,689

10,968

9,414

11

(1,839)

(1,420)

12

(290)

(192)

(2,129)

(1,612)

8,839

7,802

Non-current assets
2

4,854

1,835

Cost of sales

(1,385)

Gross profit

3,469

1,440

(4,990)

(2,257)

Adjusted operating expenses (1)

(395)

Current assets
Trade and other receivables

Loss before interest, tax, depreciation, amortisation, share
based payment charge and costs associated with acquisition of
subsidiary

10

Current tax receivable
(1,521)

(817)

Share based payment charge

(593)

(119)

Depreciation and amortisation

(1,441)

(538)

-

Costs associated with acquisition of subsidiary
Operating loss and loss before taxation

3

Taxation

5

Loss and total comprehensive loss attributable to the owners of the
parent for the financial year

(3,555)
203

(3,352)

(269)
(1,743)
143

(1,600)

(1) Adjusted operating expenses excludes share based payment charge and costs associated with the acquisition of Eagle Eye Solutions (North) Limited

Cash and cash equivalents

13

Total assets
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Non-current liabilities
Deferred tax liability
Total liabilities
Net assets

Loss per share
Equity attributable to owners of the parent
From continuing operations
Basic and diluted

6

(16.17)p

(10.65)p

Share capital

14

221

201

Share premium

14

10,985

7,209

Merger reserve

14

3,278

3,278

608

197

Share option reserve
Retained losses
Total equity

(6,253)

(3,083)

8,839

7,802

These financial statements were approved by the Board on 15 September 2015 and signed on its behalf by:
L Sharman-Munday
P Blundell
Director			Director
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Continuing operations
Revenue

Note

2014
£000

Financial Statements

2015
£000

Shareholder information

Note
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Share
capital
£000
Balance at 1 July 2013
Loss for the financial year

136

Share
premium
£000
-

Merger
reserve
£000

Share option
reserve
£000

Retained
losses
£000

Total
£000

Cash flows from operating activities
Loss before taxation

3,278

78

(1,483)

2,009

(1,600)

(1,600)

Adjustments for:

-

-

-

-

(1,600)

(1,600)

Depreciation

42

32

Amortisation

1,399

506

65

8,181

-

-

-

593

119

Increase in trade and other receivables

(63)

(520)

Increase in trade and other payables

418

300

Income tax received

362

-

Share based payment charge

8,246

-

-

-

(972)

Share based payment
charge

-

-

-

119

-

119

-

7,393

Net cash flows from operating activities

7,802

Cash flows from investing activities

65

7,209

-

119

201

7,209

3,278

197

(3,083)

Payments to acquire property, plant and equipment
Payments to acquire intangible assets

Share
capital
£000

Share
premium
£000

Merger
reserve
£000

Share option
reserve
£000

Retained
losses
£000

Total
£000

201

7,209

3,278

197

(3,083)

7,802

(17)

(33)

(958)

(568)

(975)

(2,500)
(3,101)

-

-

-

(3,352)

(3,352)

Cash flows from financing activities

-

-

-

(3,352)

(3,352)

Net proceeds from issue of equity

3,796

5,274

Net cash flows from financing activities

3,796

5,274

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents in the year

2,017

867

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

2,275

1,408

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

4,292

2,275

20

4,006
(230)

-

-

-

4,026

-

-

-

(230)

182

-

-

Fair value of share options
lapsed in the year

-

-

-

(182)

Share based payment
charge

-

-

-

593

-

593

20

3,776

-

411

182

4,389

221

10,985

3,278

608
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Net cash flows used in investing activities

(1,306)

-

Issue costs

Balance at 30 June 2015

Purchase of business (see note 17)

(804)

Transactions with owners
recognised in equity
Issue of share capital

(1,743)

-

(972)

Loss for the financial year

(3,555)

-

-

Balance at 30 June 2014

2014
£000

-

Issue costs

Balance at 30 June 2014

2015
£000

-

Transactions with owners
recognised in equity
Issue of share capital

Overview

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

(6,253)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
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8,839
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1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Overview

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

New standards, amendments and interpretations issued but not effective for the financial year beginning 1 July

New standards, amendments and interpretations adopted during the year ended 30 June 2015
The IASB and IFRIC have issued the following standards and interpretations which have been adopted during the year.
The adoption of these standards and interpretations has not had a material impact on the Group.
Standard

Key requirements

IFRS 10, Consolidated
Financial Statements

The standard’s objective is to establish principles for the presentation and preparation of
consolidated financial statements when an entity controls one or more other entities. It
builds on existing principles by identifying the concept of control as the determining factor
in whether an entity should be included within the consolidated financial statements of the
parent company. The standard provides additional guidance to assist in the determination of
control where this is difficult to assess.

IFRS 11, Joint
Arrangements

IFRS 11 is a more realistic reflection of joint arrangements by focusing on the rights and
obligations of the arrangement rather than its legal form. There are two types of joint
arrangement: joint operations and joint ventures. Proportional consolidation of joint ventures
is no longer allowed.

IFRS 12, Disclosures
of interests in Other
Entities

IFRS 12 includes the disclosure requirements for all forms of interests in other entities,
including joint arrangements, associates, special purpose vehicles and other off balance
sheet vehicles.

IAS 27 (revised 2011),
Separate Financial
Statements

IAS 27 (revised 2011) includes the provisions on separate financial statements that are left
after the control provisions of IAS 27 have been included in the new IFRS 10.

IAS 28 (revised 2011),
Associates and Joint
Ventures

IAS 28 (revised 2011) includes the requirements for joint ventures, as well as associates, to
be equity accounted following the issue of IFRS 11.

IAS 32, Offsetting
Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities

The amendments clarify existing application issues relating to the offsetting requirements.

Key requirements

Effective date (for annual
periods beginning on or
after)

IFRS 9,
Financial
Instruments

The standard is the first standard issued as part of a wider project
to replace IAS 39. It replaces the parts of IAS 39 that relate to the
classification and measurement of financial instruments. IFRS 9 requires
financial assets to be classified into two measurement categories:
those measured as at fair value and those measured at amortised
cost. The classification depends on the entity’s business model and the
contractual cash flow characteristics of the instrument. The guidance
in IAS 39 on impairment of financial assets and hedge accounting
continues to apply.

1 January 2018

IFRS 15,
Revenue
from
Contracts
with
Customers

The standard specifies how and when a company will recognise
revenue as well as requiring such entities to provider users of financial
statements with more informative, relevant disclosures. The standard
provides a single, principles based five-step model to be applied to all
contracts with customers.

1 January 2018

There are no other IFRSs or IFRIC interpretations that are not yet effective that would be expected to have a material impact
on the Group.
Going concern
As part of their going concern review the Directors have
followed the guidelines published by the Financial Reporting
Council entitled “Going Concern and Liquidity Risk Guidance
for UK Companies 2009”.
The Directors have prepared detailed financial forecasts
and cash flows looking beyond 12 months from the date
of approval of these consolidated financial statements.
In developing these forecasts the Directors have made
assumptions based upon their view of the current and future
economic conditions that will prevail over the forecast period.
On the basis of the above projections, the Directors are
confident that the Group has sufficient working capital to
honour all of its obligations to creditors as and when they
fall due. In reaching this conclusion, the Directors have
considered the forecast cash headroom, the resources
available to the Group and the potential impact of changes
in forecast growth and other assumptions, including the
potential to avoid or defer certain costs and to reduce
discretionary spend as mitigating actions in the event of
such changes. Accordingly, the Directors continue to adopt
the going concern basis in preparing these consolidated
financial statements.
Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements consolidate those
of the Company and its subsidiary undertakings drawn up
to 30 June each year. Subsidiaries are entities where the
Company has: power over the entity; exposure, or rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity; and the
ability to use its power over the entity to affect the amount
of its returns. The Group generally obtains and exercises
control through voting rights.
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On 18 March 2014 the Company acquired the shares of
Eagle Eye Solutions Limited in exchange for its own shares.
The Company issued 13,641,384 1p shares in exchange
for the entire share capital of Eagle Eye Solutions Limited.
The acquisition of its principal subsidiary by the Group
did not meet the definition of a business combination and
therefore fell outside the scope of IFRS 3. As IFRS did not
provide specific guidance in relation to group reorganisations
it deferred to the next appropriate GAAP being UK GAAP.
The acquisition of Eagle Eye Solutions Limited by the
Company was therefore accounted for in accordance
with the principles of merger accounting as set out in
Financial Reporting Standard 6- Acquisitions and Mergers.
Accordingly the financial information for the Group has been
presented as if Eagle Eye Solutions Limited had been owned
by the Company throughout the preceding periods. The
comparative figures for the previous year include the results
of the merged entity. The difference between the capital and
reserves of Eagle Eye Solutions Limited and the nominal
value of shares and share premium issued by the Company
to acquire the merged entity was taken to reserves.
Other than the acquisition of Eagle Eye Solutions Limited,
the results of subsidiaries acquired are consolidated from
the date on which control passed under the acquisition
method. This involves the recognition at fair value of the
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the subsidiary at
the acquisition date. These fair values are also used as the
bases for subsequent measurement in accordance with the
Group’s accounting policies.
All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses
are eliminated on consolidation.
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The presentational and functional currency of the Group is
Sterling. Results in these financial statements have been
prepared to the nearest £1,000.

Standard

Financial Statements

The loss before interest, tax, depreciation, amortisation,
share-based payment charge and costs of the acquisition
of Eagle Eye Solutions (North) Limited is presented in the

The preparation of financial statements requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process of
applying accounting policies. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the Financial Information,
are disclosed on pages 34 and 35.

The IASB and IFRIC have issued the following standards and interpretations with effective dates as noted below:

Shareholder information

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis under the historical
cost convention, and in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the
EU and the International Financial Reporting Interpretations
Committee (IFRIC) interpretations issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) that are effective or
issued and early adopted as at the date of these financial
statements and in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act 2006.

income statement as the Directors consider this performance
measure provides a more accurate indication of the
underlying performance of the Group.

Strategic Report

2014 and not early adopted
Basis of preparation

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Overview

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

Development and set up fees are recognised on a
percentage of completion basis using estimates. A project
typically takes a number of months and where such a project
spans a period end, the Group recognises accrued income
on the Statement of Financial Position to reflect the service
provided on a stage of completion basis.
Subscription fees are recognised on a monthly basis
and are invoiced on a monthly, quarterly, bi-annual or
annual basis. Where invoices are raised in advance, a
portion is recognised in deferred income in the Statement
of Financial Position.
Transactional fees are recognised based on transactional
volumes as the transactions occur.
Operating profit
Operating profit comprises the Group’s revenue for
the provision of services, less the costs of providing
those services and administrative overheads, including
depreciation and amortisation of the Group’s
non-current assets.
Accounting for joint ventures
Joint ventures are entities which are jointly controlled.
Investments in joint ventures are accounted for using the
equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, the
investment is originally recognised at cost and the carrying
amount is increased or decreased to recognise the investor’s
share of the profit and loss of the investee after the date
of acquisition. The Group’s investment in joint ventures
includes any goodwill to the extent identified on acquisition.
If the ownership interest in a joint venture is reduced but
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate share
of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to the income
statement where appropriate.
The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss
is recognised in the income statement, and its share
of post-acquisition movements is recognised in other
comprehensive income with a corresponding adjustment to
the carrying amount of the investment. When the Group’s
share of losses in a joint venture equals or exceeds its
interest in the joint venture, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses,
unless it has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the joint venture.
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Property, plant and equipment
Purchased property, plant and equipment is stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and any provision for
impairment losses.
Cost includes the original purchase price of the asset and
the costs attributable to bringing the asset to its working
condition for its intended use. Depreciation is charged so as
to write off the costs of assets over their estimated useful
lives, on the following bases:
Computer equipment		
Office furniture and fittings		

2 to 4 years, straight-line
3 to 5 years, straight-line

The residual values and economic lives of assets are
reviewed by the Directors on at least an annual basis and
are amended as appropriate.
Intangible assets
Goodwill
Goodwill arising on business combinations represents
the difference between the consideration for a business
acquisition and the fair value of the net identifiable assets
acquired, less any accumulated impairment losses. The
consideration for a business acquisition represents the fair
value of assets given and equity instruments issued in return
for the assets acquired. Goodwill is not amortised but is
subject to an impairment review which is performed at least
annually.
Assets acquired as part of a business combination
In accordance with IFRS 3 Business Combinations, an
intangible asset acquired in a business combination is
deemed to have a cost to the Group of its fair value at the
acquisition date. The fair value of the intangible assets
reflects expectations about the probability that future
economic benefits from the asset will flow to the Group.
These costs are amortised on a straight line basis based
upon the Directors’ estimate of their useful economic lives
of 3 years.

• the technical feasibility of completing the intangible
asset so that it will be available for use or sale
• its intention to complete the intangible asset and use
or sell it
• its ability to use or sell the intangible asset
• how the intangible asset will generate probable future
economic benefits
• the availability of adequate technical, financial and
other resources to complete the development and to
use or sell the intangible asset
• its ability to measure reliably the expenditure
attributable to the intangible asset during its
development
Internally-generated development intangible assets are
amortised as an administrative cost on a straight-line basis
over their useful lives of 3 years.
Where no internally-generated intangible asset can be
recognised, research and development expenditure is
recognised as an expense in the period in which it is
incurred.
Impairment of tangible and intangible assets
The Group reviews the carrying amounts of its assets
annually to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss (if any). Where the asset does not generate cash
flows that are independent from other assets, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs. An intangible asset with an
indefinite useful life is tested for impairment at least annually
and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be
impaired.
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future
cash flows have not been adjusted.
If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. In the case of a cashgenerating unit, any impairment loss is charged pro rata to
the assets in the cash-generating unit.

Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in
the consolidated Statement of Financial Position when the
Group becomes party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Financial assets are de-recognised when the
contracted rights to the cash flows from the financial asset
expire or when the contracted rights to those assets are
transferred. Financial liabilities are de-recognised when the
obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled
or expired.
Financial assets
(a) Trade and other receivables
Trade and other receivables are recognised at their fair
value. Appropriate provisions for estimated irrecoverable
amounts are recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income when there is objective evidence that the assets are
impaired. Trade and other receivables are shown in note 13
as ‘loans and receivables’.
(b) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, demand
deposits held on call with banks, and other short-term highly
liquid investments with original maturities of three months or
less that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash
and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
Cash and cash equivalents are shown in note 13 as ‘loans
and receivables’.
Financial liabilities and equity
(c) Trade and other payables
Trade payables are recognised at their fair value. Trade
and other payables are shown in note 13 as ‘other financial
liabilities’.
(d) Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company
are recorded at the proceeds received, net of issue costs.
Leases
Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards
of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases
(net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged
to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the expected
period of the lease.
Employee benefits
The Group operates a defined contribution pension scheme
for certain employees of the Group. The assets of the
scheme are held separately from those of the Group in
an independently administered fund. The pension costs
charged in the income statement are the contributions
payable to the scheme in respect of the accounting period.
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Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the provision of the Group’s
services, excluding VAT, and is recognised at the point that
the services have been delivered. Revenue is recognised
when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured,
when it is probable that future economic benefits can flow to
the Group and when specific criteria have been met for each
of the activities as described below:

Internally-generated development intangible assets
An internally-generated development intangible asset arising
from the Group’s product development is recognised if, and
only if, the Group can demonstrate all of the following:

Governance

Revenue recognition

The Group determines at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment in the
joint venture is impaired. If this is the case, the Group
calculates the amount of impairment as the difference
between the recoverable amount of the joint venture and
its carrying amount and recognises the impairment in the
income statement.
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Deferred tax
Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or
recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements
and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit.
Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.
Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset
is realised based on tax laws and rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.
Deferred tax is charged or credited in the income statement,
except when it relates to items charged or credited in other
comprehensive income, in which case the deferred tax is
also dealt with in other comprehensive income.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends
to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.
Share-based payments
The Company issues equity-settled share-based payments
to certain employees as consideration for services. Equitysettled share-based payments are measured at fair value at
the date of grant by reference to the fair value of the equity
instruments granted. The fair value determined at the grant
date of equity-settled share-based payments is recognised
as an expense over the vesting period on a straight-line
basis, based on the Group’s estimate of the number of
instruments that will eventually vest with a corresponding
adjustment to equity. The expected life used in the valuation
is adjusted, based on the Directors’ best estimate, for
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When the options are exercised the Company issues
new shares. The proceeds received net of any directly
attributable transaction costs are credited to share capital
(nominal value) and share premium.
Segment Reporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker. The chief operating decision maker, who
is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been identified
as the Board of Directors that makes strategic decisions.
Equity
Equity comprises the following:
• Share capital, representing the nominal value of shares
of the Company;
•

•

•

•

Share premium, representing the excess over the
nominal value of the fair value of consideration received
for shares, net of expenses of the share issue;
Merger reserve, representing the excess of the
Company’s investment over the nominal value of Eagle
Eye Solutions Limited’s shares acquired using the
principles of merger accounting;
Share option reserve, representing the cost of equitysettled share-based payments until such share options
are exercised or lapse;
Retained losses.

Critical accounting estimates and judgements
The preparation of these consolidated financial statements
requires the Directors to make judgements and estimates
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at
each reporting date and the reported amounts of revenue
during the reporting periods. Actual results could differ from
these estimates. Information about such judgements and
estimations are contained in individual accounting policies.
The key judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty
that could cause an adjustment to be required to the carrying
amount of assets or liabilities within the next accounting
period are outlined below:
Impairment of internally-generated intangible assets
An impairment review of the Group’s development costs is
undertaken at least annually. This review involves the use of
judgement to consider the future projected income streams
that will result from the aforementioned costs. The expected
future cash flows are modelled and discounted over the

Impairment of goodwill
The Group determines whether goodwill arising on
acquisitions is impaired at least on an annual basis.
This requires an estimation of the ‘value in use’ of the
cash-generating units to which the goodwill is allocated.
Estimating a value in use amount requires the directors to
make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from
the cash-generating unit and also to choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those
cash flows. The actual cash flows may be different from the
directors’ estimates, which could impact the carrying value of
the goodwill and therefore operating results negatively. The
value of goodwill at 30 June 2015 is £2.7 million
(2014: £2.7 million).
Revenue recognition
Where the Group is providing material development
services, development fees are recognised in line with
percentage completion of work performed towards
milestones. Milestones and the Directors’ estimate of
percentage completion may differ, which could impact
operating results positively or negatively. At 30 June 2015,
unbilled but contracted revenue of £252,000 (2014: £72,000)
has been recognised for development fees.
Share-based payment charge
The Group issues share options to certain employees. The
Black Scholes model is used to calculate the appropriate
charge for these options. The use of this model to
calculate a charge involves using a number of estimates
and judgements to establish the appropriate inputs to be
entered into the model, covering areas such as the use
of an appropriate interest rate and dividend rate, exercise
restrictions and behavioural considerations. A significant
element of judgement is therefore involved in the calculation
of the charge.

2 SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS
The Group is organised into one principal operating division
for management purposes. Therefore the Group has only
one operating segment and segmental information is not
required to be disclosed. Revenue is analysed as follows:
2015
£000

2014
£000

Development and
set up fees

992

605

Subscription fees

643

174

Transaction fees

3,219

1,056

4,854

1,835

In the year to 30 June 2015, revenue from one of the
Group’s customers represent more than 10% of the Group’s
revenue. Revenue related to this customer was £852,000. In
the year to 30 June 2014, revenues from two of the Group’s
customers represented more than 10% of the Group’s
revenue. Revenues related to these customers were
£210,000 and £196,000 respectively.
All revenues are from external customers. Continuing
revenues can be attributed to the following countries, based
on the customers’ location, as follows:

United Kingdom

Strategic Report

Current tax
The tax currently payable is based on taxable loss for the
year. Taxable loss differs from the loss for the financial year
as reported in the income statement because it excludes
items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and it further excludes items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax
is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Non-vesting and market vesting conditions are taken into
account when estimating the fair value of the options at grant
date. Service and non-market vesting conditions are taken
into account by adjusting the number of options expected to
vest at each reporting date.

expected life of the assets in order to test for impairment.
In the years represented in these consolidated financial
statements no impairment charge was recognised as a
result of these reviews.

2015
£000

2014
£000

4,515

1,625

Rest of Europe

194

-

Asia

145

210

4,854

1,835

All non-current assets are held in the United Kingdom.

The total charge recognised in the year to 30 June 2015 is
£593,000 (2014: £119,000). Further information on share
options can be found in note 15.
Deferred tax asset recognition
The Directors’ judgement is required to determine the
amount of tax assets that can be recognised, based upon
the likely timing and level of future taxable profits together
with an assessment of the effect of future tax planning
strategies. The carrying value of the unrecognised tax losses
at 30 June 2015 was £17.8 million (2014: £13.1 million).
The value of the deferred tax asset not recognised at 30
June 2015 was £3.7 million (2014: £2.8 million) Further
information on the Group’s deferred tax position can be
found in Note 12.
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Current and deferred income tax

the effect of non-transferability, exercise restrictions, and
behavioural considerations.
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Depreciation of owned tangible
assets
Amortisation of intangible assets

2014

2015

2014

£000

£000

£000

£000

856

339

42

32

1,399

506

Operating lease rentals

-

269

3,068

1,527

182

31

Auditor’s remuneration
Audit of parent and consolidated
accounts
Audit of the Company’s
subsidiaries
Non-audit services
Other non-audit services (1)
Research and development

Share based payment charge
Pension costs- defined contribution
plan

Costs associated with acquisition of
Eagle Eye Solutions (North) Limited
(formerly 2ergo Limited)
Employee costs (see note 4)

Aggregate emoluments including
short-term employee benefits

297

64

7

1

1,160

404

12

12

18

23

10

9

433

166

(1) Other non-audit services includes tax services of £10,000 (2014: £9,000). In 2014,
non-audit services of £187,000 in relation to the Company’s Initial Public Offering were
treated as costs of issue. Costs associated with the acquisition of 2ergo Limited included
non-audit services of £28,000.

Aggregate emoluments including
short-term employee benefits
Pension costs- defined
contribution plan
Fees

The average number of persons employed by the Group,
including executive directors, during the year was:
2015

2014

No

No

Technical

19

11

Sales and administration

31

18

50

29

Aggregate emoluments including
short-term employee benefits

£000

£000

Adjustments in respect of
prior years

-

-

(301)

-

(301)

-

2014

£000

£000

663

318

4

-

55

20

722

338

Tax on loss on ordinary activities

Loss
£000

Weighted
average
number of
ordinary
shares

(150)
248

(203)

(143)
(143)

2015
Basic and diluted
loss per share

Loss per
share
pence
(16.17)

(3,352)

20,721,298

Loss
£000

Weighted
average
number of
ordinary
shares

(1,600)

15,017,626

(143)

Tax reconciliation
Loss before tax
Tax using UK corporation tax
rate of 20.75% (2014: 22.50%)
Non-deductible expenses

(3,555)

(1,743)

2014
(738)
126

(392)

Temporary timing differences

(19)

(171)

£000

£000

Unrelieved tax losses

745

351

247

198

Effect of changes in tax rates

(16)

(21)

Adjustment to current tax in
respect of prior years

(301)

Tax on loss on ordinary activities

(203)

Basic and diluted
loss per share

Loss per
share
pence
(10.65)

90

2014

The remuneration of individual directors is disclosed in
the Directors’ report on page 21. There are no retirement
benefits accruing to any directors.

The calculation of basic and diluted loss per share is based
on the result attributable to ordinary shareholders divided
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
during the year. The weighted average number of shares for
the purpose of calculating the basic and diluted measures
is the same. This is because the outstanding share options
would have the effect of reducing the loss per ordinary share
and therefore would be anti-dilutive. Basic and diluted loss
per share from continuing operations is calculated
as follows:

Deferred tax

98

2015

The remuneration of the highest paid director during
the year was:
2015

4 PARTICULARS OF STAFF

UK Corporation tax at 20.75%
(2014: 22.50%)

In respect of prior years

Remuneration of directors during the year was as follows:

2014

Current tax

In respect of current year
Directors’ remuneration

2015

(143)

The aggregate payroll costs of these persons were:
2015

2014

£000

£000

2.955

1,677

Share based payment charge

593

119

Social security costs

402

196

33

5

Wages and salaries

Pension costs- defined contribution
plan
Less: amounts capitalised as
intellectual property

(915)
3,068
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(470)
1,527
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Operating loss is stated after charging to
administrative costs:

Remuneration of the key management team, including
executive directors, during the year was as follows:

Financial Statements

Key management remuneration

Shareholder information

5 TAXATION

3 OPERATING LOSS
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Cost
At 1 July 2013

-

601

601

Additions

-

568

568

Acquisitions

2,664

2,408

5,072

At 30 June 2014

2,664

3,577

6,241

-

958

958

Additions
At 30 June 2015

2,664

4,535

7,199

Amortisation
At 1 July 2013

-

88

88

Charge for the year

-

506

506

Cash
generating
unit

Carrying
value of
goodwill
£000

Period
over which
cash flows
have been
projected

Growth rate
beyond
management
approved
forecasts

Discount
rate for
cashflow
projections

Messaging

2,664

5 years

2.5%

11%

Investment in joint ventures

Computer
equipment
£000

Office
furniture
and
fittings
£000

Total
£000

At 1 July 2013

52

-

52

Additions

33

-

33

Acquisition

52

5

57

At 30 June
2014

137

5

142

17

-

17

154

5

159

Cost

Additions
At 30 June
2015

At 30 June 2014

-

594

594

Charge for the year

-

1,399

1,399

At 30 June 2015

-

1,993

1,993

Net book value
At 30 June 2015

2,664

2,542

5,206

At 30 June 2014

2,664

2,983

5,647

-

513

513

At 1 July 2013

The Group’s intellectual property relates to its internally
developed Air platform and the acquired intellectual property
of 2ergo Limited which consisted of a then stand-alone
messaging platform and an app and customer interface
loyalty solution, both of which have now been integrated
within the Air platform.

The Group has no intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives other than goodwill.

At 1 July 2013
Charge for the
year

32
32

-

The Group has not provided any funding to Eagle Eye
Solutions (Asia Pacific) Pty Limited since its original
investment in the share capital of £51 and due to the
losses made, has not invoiced the company for revenue
due to it under the terms of the licence agreement. In
accordance with IFRS 11: Joint Arrangements, the Directors
have treated this investment as a joint venture and have
accounted for this interest as a jointly controlled entity using
the principles of equity accounting as set out below:

-

2015

2014

£000

£000

8

13

Trade and other
receivables

17

2

Cash and cash
equivalents

12

5

29

7

37

20

Trade and other
payables

(2)

(1)

Net assets

35

19

32
32

Non-current assets
Property, plant and
equipment

At 30 June
2014

64

-

64

Charge for the
year

39

3

42

At 30 June
2015

The Group holds an interest in the ordinary share capital of
Australian company Eagle Eye Solutions (Asia Pacific) Pty
Limited of 51%. The company was established in order to
sell the Eagle Eye platform in the Asia Pacific market and
was granted a licence by Eagle Eye Solutions Limited in
order to sell the platform in these territories, under which
an income stream based on sales was due to Eagle Eye
Solutions Limited.

Summarised statement of financial position for Eagle
Eye Solutions (Asia Pacific) Pty Limited

Depreciation
The key assumptions underlying the forecast are the
continued profitability flowing from existing contracts
and subsequent growth based on focus on the Group’s
acquired messaging technology and the broad maintenance
and control of the current cost base for the messaging
cash-generating unit. These assumptions are based on
management’s experience and the historical success of
the cash-generating unit. The forecast for the unit provides
sufficient headroom over the value of goodwill and intangible
assets attributed to the cash-generating unit.

Strategic Report

Total
£000

The Group’s goodwill relates to its acquisition of 2ergo
Limited on 16 April 2014. An annual impairment review
of goodwill arising on acquisition has been performed for
the messaging cash-generating unit which formed part of
2ergo Limited. The recoverable value of the unit has been
based on its value in use. The cash flow projections, which
were based on 3 year forecasts approved by the Directors
and then extended to cover a 5 year period, supported
the carrying value of goodwill and the Group’s intellectual
property with no impairment required. Discount rates are
determined by reference to relevant comparator companies.

103

3

106

Net book value

Current assets

Total assets

At 30 June
2015

51

2

53

At 30 June
2014

73

5

78

At 1 July 2013

20

-

20

Current liabilities

Summarised statement of total comprehensive income
for Eagle Eye Solutions (Asia Pacific) Pty Limited

Profit before tax
Income tax
Profit after tax
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Goodwill
£000

Intellectual
property
£000

9 INVESTMENTS
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8 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Shareholder information

7 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

2015

2014

£000

£000

21

-

-

-

21

-
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10 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables
Less: Provision for
impairment of trade
receivables

2015

2014

£000

£000

675

857

(40)

(46)

635

811

Prepayments and
accrued income

746

335

Other receivables

36

207

1,417

1,353

The ageing of trade receivables that were not impaired at
30 June 2015 was:
2015

2014

£000

£000

Not past due

406

519

Up to 3 months past
due

205

194

More than 3 months
past due

16

120

627

833

Provision for
impairment of
receivables
Receivables written off
during the year

2014

£000

£000

46

-

20

-

(26)

-

Acquisition

-

46

At 30 June

40

46

The other classes within trade and other receivables do not
contain impaired assets. The maximum exposure to credit
risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class
of receivable disclosed above.
The Group’s trade and other receivables are all denominated
in Sterling.

Accelerated capital
allowances and
intellectual property

2014

£000

£000

Principal financial instruments
290

192

Movement in deferred tax:
Accelerated
capital allowances and
intellectual property

The principal financial instruments used by the Group from
which financial instrument risk arises are as follows:
•
Trade and other receivables
•
Cash and cash equivalents
•
Trade and other payables
2015

2014

£000

£000

Trade and other
receivables

1,148

1,018

Cash and cash
equivalents

4,292

2,275

5,440

3,293

1,598

1,190

£000
At 1 July 2013
Credited to income
statement

(143)

Acquisitions

335

At 30 June 2014

192

Charged to income
statement
At 30 June 2015

2015

2014

£000

£000

Trade payables

780

533

Other payables

205

357

Accruals and deferred
income

854

530

1,839

1,420

Strategic Report

2015

The Group is exposed to a variety of financial risks that arise
from its use of financial instruments: credit risk, liquidity risk
and capital risk.

Financial assets
Loans and receivables

98
290

No deferred tax asset is recognised for unused tax losses
across the Group of £17.8 million (2014: £13.1 million) due
to uncertainty over the timing of their recovery.

Financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities
Trade and other
payables

Disclosures in respect of the Group’s financial risks are set
out below:
Financial risk management

11 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Current

Accrued income and other receivables are not past due
(2014: not past due).
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At 1 July

2015

The elements of deferred taxation are as follows:

Governance

In the year ended 30 June 2012, the Directors reviewed the
losses made and determined that the investment in Eagle
Eye Solutions (Asia Pacific) Pty Limited was impaired,
writing it down to £nil.

13 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

12 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY

The Group’s activities expose it to credit and liquidity risks.
The Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and
seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance.
Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a
customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to
meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from
trade receivables from customers and cash deposits with
financial institutions. The Group’s exposure to credit risk is
influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer. Receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing
basis with the aim of minimising the Group’s exposure to bad
debt and in some cases the Group holds cash as security for
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The statement of financial position for Eagle Eye Solutions
(Asia Pacific) Pty Limited has been translated to Sterling at
the exchange rate at each period end. The performance in
the income statement has been translated at the average
exchange rate during each period.

The Group trades only with recognised, credit-worthy third
parties. Receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing
basis with the aim of minimising the Group’s exposure to
bad debts and in some cases the Group holds cash as
security for some customers’ debts. The Group has reviewed
in detail all items comprising the above not past due and
overdue but not impaired trade receivables to ensure that
no impairment exists. As at 30 June 2015, trade receivables
of £48,000 (2014: £33,000) were impaired and provided
for, all of which were more than 2 months old. The amount
of the provision was £40,000 as at 30 June 2015 (2014:
£46,000). Movements on the provision for impairment of
trade receivables are as follows:

Shareholder information

9 INVESTMENTS CONTINUED
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The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the
consolidated financial statements represents the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk without taking into account
the value of any collateral obtained. In the Directors’ opinion
there have been no impairments of financial assets in the
period, other than in relation to trade receivables written off
of £26,000 (2014: £nil).
Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to
meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The Group
manages its cash flows to ensure that it will always have
sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under
both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring
unacceptable losses or damage to the Group’s reputation.
The Directors manage liquidity risk by regularly reviewing the
Group’s cash requirements by reference to short-term cash
flow forecasts and medium term working capital projections
prepared by management.
Maturity of financial assets and liabilities
All of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities at
each reporting date are either receivable or payable within
one year.
Capital management
The Group’s capital structure is comprised entirely of
shareholders’ equity. The objective of the Group when
managing capital is to maintain adequate financial flexibility
to preserve its ability to meet financial obligations, both
current and long term. The capital structure is managed and
adjusted to reflect changes in economic conditions. The
Group funds its expenditures on commitments from existing
cash and cash equivalent balances, primarily received from
operating cash flows and issuances of shareholders’ equity.
There are no externally imposed capital requirements.
Financing decisions are made by the Directors based
on forecasts of the expected timing and level of capital
and operating expenditure required to meet the Group’s
commitments and development plans.

The authorised share capital of the Company is 22,144,266
ordinary shares of 1p each.

The Company has a share option scheme for certain
employees of the Group. Options are generally exercisable
at a price equal to the market price of the Company’s shares
on the day immediately prior to the date of grant. Options
are forfeited if the employee leaves the Group before
the options vest. The performance criteria relating to the
options are the continuing employment of the holder and the
achievement of certain earnings based performance criteria.

Number
of shares
issued
and fully
paid

Share
capital
£000

Share
premium
£000

At 1 July 2013

13,641,384

136

-

Issue of share
capital

6,489,768

65

8,181

2015

Issue costs
At 30 June
2014
Issue of share
capital

-

20,131,152

201

7,209

2,013,114

20

4,006

Issue costs
At 30 June
2015

(972)

-

22,144,266

221

(230)

10,985

On 16 March 2015, the Company issued 2,013,114 1p
ordinary shares pursuant to a placing of its shares on
AIM, to accelerate investment in product development and
infrastructure and increase sales and marketing resources to
capitalise on the market opportunity.
Merger reserve
The acquisition of its principal subsidiary by the Group
did not meet the definition of a business combination and
therefore fell outside the scope of IFRS 3. The acquisition
was therefore accounted for in accordance with the
principles of merger accounting as set out in Financial
Reporting Standard 6- Acquisitions and Mergers.
The consideration paid to the shareholders of Eagle Eye
Solutions Limited was 13,641,384 ordinary shares of 1p
each. A merger reserve arises on consolidation being the
difference between the nominal value of the shares issued
on acquisition and the net assets acquired.

Number
of
share
options
Outstanding
at the
beginning of
the year
Granted
during the
year
Exercised in
the year
Lapsed in the
year

1,309,128

2014
Weighted
average
exercise
price
£

0.51

Number
of
share
options

In the year ended 30 June 2014, options were granted on
17 September 2013, 10 October 2013 and 4 April 2014. The
aggregate of the estimated fair value of the options granted
on those dates was £479,820 and the weighted average
share price on those dates was £0.39.
Options outstanding under the Company’s share option
schemes at 30 June 2015 were as follows:

Weighted
average
exercise
price
£

Name of
scheme

2015
No of
options

2014
No of
options

Calendar
year of
grant

Exercise
period

Exercise
price per
share

0.17

EMI
Share
Option
Scheme

1,068,043

1,027,824

2014

2014-2024

£0.51

2,049,048

0.39

EMI
Share
Option
Scheme

300,000

-

2014

2014-2024

£1.55

EMI
Share
Option
Scheme

83,808

-

2015

2015-2025

£2.07

EMI
Share
Option
Scheme

72,289

-

2015

2015-2025

£2.08

Unapproved
Share
Option
Scheme

229,759

281,304

2014

2014-2024

£0.51

1,697,536

456,097

1.73

-

-

(1,473,744)

0.17

0.51

(963,712)

0.17

(11,326)

In the year ended 30 June 2015, options were granted on
17 July 2014, 3 November 2014, 12 May 2015 and 26 May
2015. The aggregate estimated fair value of the options
granted on those dates was £251,890 and the weighted
average share price on those dates was £1.73.

Outstanding
at the end of
the year

1,753,899

0.83

1,309,128

Exercisable
at the end of
the year

-

-

-

0.51

-

The weighted average remaining contractual life of these
options is 9.0 years (2014: 9.8 years).
The fair value of the employees’ services received in
exchange for the grant of share options is recognised as
an expense. The total amount to be expensed over the
vesting period is determined by reference to the fair value
of the share options granted. Fair value is determined by
reference to the Black-Scholes option pricing model.
The inputs into the option pricing models are as follows:
2015

2014

Weighted average
exercise price

£0.83

£0.51

Expected volatility

35.0%

59.1%

5 years

5 years

0.7-1.9%

1.8%

Nil

Nil

Expected life
Risk free interest rate
Expected dividends
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The Group gives careful consideration to which
organisations it uses for its banking services in order to
minimise credit risk. At the reporting date, the Group’s cash
held on short-term deposit with HSBC bank in the United
Kingdom was £4,292,000 (2014: £2,193,000). This entire
amount was denominated in Sterling.

15 SHARE OPTION SCHEME
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some customers’ debts. The Directors consider the above
measures to be sufficient to control the credit risk exposure.

14 SHARE CAPITAL

Shareholder information

13 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL
RISK MANAGEMENT CONTINUED
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15 SHARE OPTION SCHEME CONTINUED

17 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

18 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The volatility of the Company’s share price on each date
of grant is calculated as the average of the annualised
standard deviations of daily continuously compounded
returns on the Company’s stock and that of closely
comparable companies.

On 16 April 2014, the Group acquired the entire issued
share capital of 2ergo Limited (now Eagle Eye Solutions
(North) Limited) for consideration of the issue of 1,219,512
ordinary shares in Eagle Eye Solutions Group plc and
£2,500,000 in cash. The fair value of the shares issued
was determined with reference to the placing price. The
acquisition brought valuable intellectual property to extend
the capability of the Group’s platform, increased the strength
of the Group’s research and development team and gave
access to new customers.

The remuneration of the Directors and key management
personnel is disclosed in note 4.

At 30 June 2015, the Group had aggregate minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases for office
and server sites and server equipment as follows:

Due within 1 year
Due within 2-5 years

2015
£000

2014
£000

87

147

132

-

219

147

The Group’s Guildford office lease agreement has 3 months
remaining of its term. The lease for the Group’s Manchester
office can be cancelled after 5 years of its initial 10 year
term, which commenced in December 2013.

Book
value

Adjustments

Fair value

£000

£000

£000

2,646

(238)

2,408

Property, plant
and equipment

99

(42)

57

Trade and other
receivables

706

(82)

624

Trade and other
payables

(784)

(134)

(918)

(87)

(248)

(335)

Intangible
assets

Deferred tax
Net assets
acquired

2,580

(744)

Governance

The goodwill arising on the acquisition is £2,664,000 which
mainly represents the benefits the Group is expecting from
the increased research and development team and access
to new customers. The value of goodwill is supported by its
value in use and is not considered impaired. The impact of
the acquisition on the Group’s assets and liabilities is set
out below. Adjustments were made following the acquisition
in 2014 primarily to align the accounting policies of 2ergo
Limited with those of the Group.

At 30 June 2015, directors’ emoluments were outstanding to
Bob Willett (£42,000) and Sir Terry Leahy (£7,000), who are
both paid in arrears.
Save as disclosed above, none of the key management
personnel of the Group owe any amounts to any company
within the Group (2014: £nil), nor are any amounts due from
any company in the Group to any of the key management
personnel (2014: £nil).

Financial Statements

16 OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

During the year the Group acquired sub-contractor services
to the value of £78,000 (2014: £119,000) from Eagle Eye
Technology Limited, a company in which Stephen Rothwell,
a director of the Company, holds an interest. At 30 June
2015, £11,000 (2014: £6,000) was outstanding in respect of
these services.

19 ULTIMATE CONTROLLING PARTY
The Directors do not consider there to be an ultimate
controlling party due to no individual party owning a majority
share in the Company. See page 21 for information on
percentage shareholdings

Shareholder information

The Group recognised a charge of £593,000 (2014:
£119,000) related to equity-settled share-based payment
transactions in the year.

Strategic Report

CONTINUED

1,836

Goodwill

2,664

Total purchase
consideration

4,500

made up as
follows:
satisfied
by issue of
ordinary
shares

2,000

Cash

2,500
4,500
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£000

£000

Basis of preparation

4,833

These financial statements have been prepared on a going
concern basis under the historical cost convention, and in
accordance with the Companies Act 2006 and applicable
United Kingdom accounting standards (UK GAAP).

Fixed assets
Investments in subsidiaries

4

5,244

Current assets

Going concern

Debtors

5

Cash at bank and in hand

2,107

561

3,985

1,963

6,092

2,524

Current liabilities
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

6

Net current assets
Net assets

(160)

(93)

5,932

2,431

11,176

7,264

Capital and reserves
Share capital

7

221

201

Share premium

7

10,985

7,209

Share option reserve

8

608

197

Retained losses

8

(638)

(343)

Shareholders’ funds

9

11,176

These financial statements were approved by the Board on 15 September 2015 and signed on its behalf by

L Sharman-Munday
Director
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P Blundell
Director

7,264

As part of their going concern review the Directors have
followed the guidelines published by the Financial Reporting
Council entitled “Going Concern and Liquidity Risk Guidance
for UK Companies 2009”.
The Directors have prepared detailed financial forecasts
and cash flows looking beyond 12 months from the date of
approval of these financial statements. In developing these
forecasts the Directors have made assumptions based upon
their view of the current and future economic conditions that
will prevail over the forecast period.
On the basis of the above projections, the Directors are
confident that the Company has sufficient working capital to
honour all of its obligations to creditors as and when they fall
due. Accordingly, the Directors continue to adopt the going
concern basis in preparing these financial statements.

Share-based payments
The Company issues equity-settled share-based payments
to certain employees of the Group as consideration
for services. Equity-settled share-based payments are
measured at fair value at the date of grant by reference
to the fair value of the equity instruments granted. The
fair value determined at the grant date of equity-settled
share-based payments is recognised as an investment in
the subsidiary undertaking employing the option holder
over the vesting period on a straight-line basis, based on
the Directors’ estimate of the number of instruments that
will eventually vest with a corresponding adjustment to
equity. The expected life used in the valuation is adjusted,
based on the Directors’ best estimate, for the effect of
non-transferability, exercise restrictions, and behavioural
considerations.
Non-vesting and market vesting conditions are taken into
account when estimating the fair value of the options at
grant date. Service and non-market vesting conditions
are taken into account by adjusting the number of options
expected to vest at each reporting date.
When the options are exercised the Company issues
new shares. The proceeds received net of any directly
attributable transaction costs are credited to share capital
(nominal value) and share premium.

Investments
Investments held by the Company are stated at cost less
any provision for impairment in the Company’s financial
statements.
Taxation
The tax currently payable is based on taxable loss for the
period. Taxable loss differs from the loss for the financial
period as reported in the income statement because it
excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other periods and it further excludes items that
are never taxable or deductible. The Company’s liability
for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

2 LOSS OF THE PARENT COMPANY
The Company has not presented its own profit and loss
account as permitted by section 408 (4) of the Companies
Act 2006. The loss for the financial year dealt with in the
accounts of the Company is £295,000 (2014: £343,000).

3 PARTICULARS OF STAFF
The Company had no staff during the year or prior period,
other than Directors. Details of Directors’ remuneration is
contained in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.
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2014
£000

Trade creditors

23

-

Other creditors

-

4

£000
Cost and net book value
At 1 July 2014

4,833

Fair value of options lapsed in the year

(182)

Share based payment charge

593

Principal
activity

Country of
incorporation

Class and
percentage
of shares
held and
voting rights

Digital
loyalty
services

England &
Wales

Ordinary
100%

Eagle Eye
Solutions (North)
Limited

Dormant

England &
Wales

Ordinary
100%

Eagle Eye
Solutions (Asia
Pacific) Pty
Limited*

Digital
loyalty
services

Eagle Eye
Solutions Limited

137

89

160

93

5,244

At 30 June 2015

Investment

Accruals and deferred
income

Australia

Ordinary
51%

At 1 July
2014
Issued
during the
year

Number
of shares
issued and
fully paid

Share
capital
£000

Share
premium
£000

20,131,152

201

7,209

2,013,114

20

4,006

Issue costs

22,144,266

221

(230)
10,985

At 1 July
2014
Issue of
share
capital
Issue
costs
Retained
loss for the
financial
year
Fair value
of options
lapsed in
the year
FRS 20
share
option
charge

At 30
June
2015

7,209

Share
option
reserve
£000
197

Profit
and loss
account
£000
(343)

Year
ended 30
June 2015
£000

Total
£000
7,063
Loss for the financial
year

4,006
(230)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(182)

-

593

10,985

608

(295)

-

-

(638)

4,006
(230)

(295)

(182)

593

10,955

Issue of share capital

5 month
period
ended 30
June 2014
£000

(295)
4,026

(343)
8,460

Issue costs

(230)

Fair value of options
lapsed in the year

(182)

FRS 20 share option
charge

593

119

Net movement in
shareholders’ funds

3,912

7,264

Opening shareholders’
funds

7,264

-

Closing shareholders’
funds

11,176

7,264

(972)
-

10 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The Directors have taken advantage of the exemption in
FRS 8 and have not disclosed transactions with other wholly
owned group undertakings. At 30 June 2015, directors’
emoluments were outstanding to Bob Willett (£42,000) and
Sir Terry Leahy (£7,000), who are both paid in arrears.
There are no other related party transactions.

5 DEBTORS
2015
£000

2014
£000

Prepayments

8

-

Other debtors

6

-

2,093

561

2,107

561
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The authorised share capital of the Company is 22,144,266
ordinary shares of 1p each.

At 30 June
2015

* held indirectly

Amounts owed by
group undertakings

7 SHARE CAPITAL

Share
premium
£000

Strategic Report

2015
£000

Governance

Investments in subsidiaries

9 RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENT IN
SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS
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Financial Statements

8 RESERVES

Shareholder information

6 TRADE AND OTHER CREDITORS

4 INVESTMENTS

SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

ORDINARY BUSINESS
Ordinary resolutions

Special resolutions

1.

THAT the report of the directors, the financial statements and the report of the auditors for the Company’s financial year
ended 30th June 2015, be received and adopted.

7.

2.

THAT Phill Blundell, who retires by rotation and is eligible for re-appointment pursuant to article 19 of the Company’s
articles of association, be re-appointed as a director of the Company.

3.

THAT Bill Currie, who retires by rotation and is eligible for re-appointment pursuant to article 19 of the Company’s
articles of association, be re-appointed as a director of the Company.

4.

THAT:
(a)Baker Tilly UK Audit LLP of 9th Floor, 3 Hardman Street, Manchester, M3 3HF be re-appointed as auditors of the
Company to hold office from the conclusion of the AGM until the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the
Company at which financial statements are laid before the Company’s shareholders; and
(b)the directors be authorised to determine the auditors’ remuneration.

SPECIAL BUSINESS
Ordinary resolutions
5.

THAT the directors be generally and unconditionally authorised for the purposes of section 551 of the Companies Act
2006 (the “Act”) to exercise all the powers of the Company to:

(a) allot shares in the Company and grant rights to subscribe for or convert any security into shares in the Company up to
an aggregate nominal amount of £73,860.95; and
(b) allot equity securities (as defined in section 560 of the Act) up to an aggregate nominal amount of £147,721.90 (such
amount to be reduced by the nominal amount of any shares allotted or rights granted under paragraph (a) of this
resolution 5) in connection with an offer by way of a rights issue to:
		 (i) the holders of ordinary shares in the Company in proportion (as nearly as may be practicable) to the respective
		 numbers of ordinary shares held by them; and
		 (ii) holders of other equity securities, as required by the rights of those securities or, subject to such rights, as the
		 directors of the Company otherwise consider necessary,
and so that the directors of the Company may impose any limits or restrictions and make any arrangements which they
consider necessary or appropriate to deal with treasury shares, fractional entitlements, record dates, legal, regulatory or
practical problems in, or under the laws of, any territory or any other matter.
These authorities shall apply in substitution for all previous authorities (but without prejudice to the validity of any allotment
pursuant to such previous authority) and expire at the end of the next annual general meeting of the Company or, if earlier,
15 months after the date of this resolution, save that the Company may before such expiry make any offer or agreement
which would or might require shares to be allotted or rights granted to subscribe for or convert any security into shares after
such expiry and the directors may allot shares or grant such rights in pursuance of any such offer or agreement as if the
power and authority conferred by this resolution had not expired.

THAT, subject to the passing of resolution 5, the directors be generally and unconditionally empowered for the purposes
of section 570 of the Act to allot equity securities (within the meaning of section 560 of the Act) for cash:
(a) pursuant to the authority conferred by resolution 5; or
(b) where the allotment constitutes an allotment within the meaning of section 560(2)(b) of the Act,
in each case as if section 561 of the Act did not apply to any such allotment, provided that this power shall be limited to:
(i)		 the allotment of equity securities in connection with an offer of equity securities (but in the case of an allotment
			 pursuant to the authority granted under paragraph (b) of resolution 5, such power shall be limited to the allotment of
			 equity securities in connection with an offer by way of a rights issue only) to:

				 (A) the holders of ordinary shares in the Company in proportion (as nearly as may be practicable) to the respective
					 numbers of ordinary shares held by them; and
				 (B) holders of other equity securities, as required by the rights of those securities or, subject to such rights, as the
					 directors of the Company otherwise consider necessary,
				 and so that the directors of the Company may impose any limits or restrictions and make any arrangements which
			 they consider necessary or appropriate to deal with treasury shares, fractional entitlements, record dates, legal,
			 regulatory or practical problems in, or under the laws of, any territory or any other matter; and
(ii) the grant of options to subscribe for shares in the Company, and the allotment of such shares pursuant to the
			 exercise of options granted under the terms of any share option scheme adopted or operated by the Company; and
(iii) the allotment of equity securities, other than pursuant to paragraphs (i) and (ii) above of this resolution, up to an
			 aggregate nominal amount of £22,158.29.
				 This power shall (unless previously renewed, varied or novated by the Company in general meeting) expire at the
			 conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company following the passing of this resolution or, if earlier,
			 on the date 15 months after the passing of such resolution, save that the Company may before the expiry of this
			 power make any offer or enter into any agreement which would or might require equity securities to be allotted, or
			 treasury shares sold, after such expiry and the directors may allot equity securities or sell treasury shares in
			 pursuance of any such offer or agreement as if the power conferred by this resolution had not expired.
By order of the Board
Lucy Sharman-Munday
Company Secretary
For and on behalf of Eagle Eye Solutions Group plc
Dated: 21 October 2015
Registered Office:
5 New Street Square, London EC4A 3TW
Registered in England & Wales NO. 8892109
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The AGM will be held in order to consider and, if thought fit, pass the following resolutions which will be proposed as special
or ordinary resolutions as indicated.

THAT the limit on the number of ordinary shares which may be issued and outstanding under the Company’s share
option schemes from time to time be increased from 10 per cent. of the ordinary share capital of the Company in issue
(when added to the aggregate of the number of ordinary shares allocated in the previous ten years under the schemes)
to a maximum limit of 15 per cent. of the ordinary share capital of the Company in issue at any time (without reference
to the number of ordinary shares allocated in the previous ten years) and that the rules of the share option schemes of
the Company be amended accordingly.

Governance

6.
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NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the annual general meeting (“AGM”) of Eagle Eye Solutions Group plc (the “Company”)
will be held at Hudson Sandler, 29 Cloth Fair, London EC1A 7NN at 12.00 p.m. on Tuesday 17 November 2015.

Overview

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Shareholder information

SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

COMPANY INFORMATION

Notes:

DIRECTORS

SOLICITORS

1. Members are entitled to appoint a proxy to exercise all or any of their rights to attend and to speak and vote on their
behalf at the meeting and at any adjournment of it. A member may appoint more than one proxy in relation to the meeting
provided that each proxy is appointed to exercise the rights attached to a different share or shares held by that member.
If a proxy appointment is submitted without indicating how the proxy should vote on any resolution, the proxy will exercise
his discretion as to whether and, if so, how he votes.

Bob Willett
Phill Blundell
Steve Rothwell
Lucy Sharman-Munday
Bill Currie
Sir Terry Leahy
Drew Thomson
Malcolm Wall

Taylor Wessing LLP
5 New Street Square
London
EC4A 3TW

4. The return of a completed proxy form will not prevent a member attending the meeting and voting in person if he/she
wishes to do so.
5. A vote withheld option is provided on the form of proxy to enable you to instruct your proxy not to vote on any particular
resolution, however, it should be noted that a vote withheld in this way is not a ‘vote’ in law and will not be counted in the
calculation of the proportion of the votes ‘For’ and ‘Against’ a resolution.
6. To be entitled to attend and vote at the meeting (and for the purpose of the determination by the Company of the votes
they may cast), members must be registered in the register of members of the Company 6.00 p.m. on 15 November
2015 (or, in the event of any adjournment, at 6.00 p.m. on the date which is two days before the time of the adjourned
meeting (weekends and public holidays excluded)). Changes to the register of members after the relevant deadline shall
be disregarded in determining the rights of any person to attend and vote at the meeting.
7. In the case of joint holders, where more than one of the joint holders purports to appoint a proxy, only the appointment
submitted by the most senior holder will be accepted. Seniority is determined by the order in which the names of the
joint holders appear in the Company’s register of members in respect of the joint holding (the first-named being the most
senior).
8. If a member submits more than one valid proxy appointment, the appointment received last before the latest time for the
receipt of proxies will take precedence.
9. Any corporation which is a member can appoint one or more corporate representatives who may exercise on its behalf
all of its powers as a member provided that they do not so in relation to the same shares.

SECRETARY
Lucy Sharman-Munday
COMPANY NUMBER
8892109
REGISTERED OFFICE
5 New Street Square
London
EC4A 3TW
NOMINATED ADVISER AND BROKER
Panmure Gordon (UK) Limited
One New Change
London
EC4M 9AF

Strategic Report

Baker Tilly UK Audit LLP
Chartered Accountants
Ninth Floor
3 Hardman Street
Manchester
M3 3HF

Governance

3. To be valid any proxy form or other instrument appointing a proxy must be received by post or (during normal business
hours only) by hand by Equiniti, Aspect House, Spencer Road, Lancing, West Sussex BN99 6DA no later than 12:00 p.m.
on 15 November 2015 (or, in the event of any adjournment, no later than 12.00 p.m. on the date which is two days before
the time of the adjourned meeting (weekends and public holidays excluded)), together with, if appropriate, the power of
attorney or other authority (if any) under which it is signed or a duly certified copy of that power or authority.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

CORPORATE COMMUNICATIONS
Hudson Sandler
29 Cloth Fair
London
EC1A 7NN

Financial Statements

2. A proxy need not be a member of the Company. A proxy form which may be used to make such appointment and give
proxy instructions accompanies this notice. If you do not have a proxy form and believe that you should have one, or if
you require additional forms, please contact Equiniti, Aspect House, Spencer Road, Lancing, West Sussex BN99 6DA.

REGISTRARS
Equiniti
Aspect House
Spencer Road
Lancing
West Sussex
BN99 6DA

Shareholder information

CONTINUED

Overview

SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

BANKERS
HSBC plc
87 George Street
Richmond
Surrey
TW9 1HG

10. Under the Company’s option schemes, the board has the authority to increase the limit on the number of ordinary shares
over which share options may be granted without shareholder approval. However, in the interests of transparency,
the board proposes to seek shareholder approval of the increased limit at the AGM.
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Customer service enquiries:
Tel: 0844 824 3699
Sales and general enquiries:
Tel: 0844 824 3686
Email: info@eagleeye.com
Web: www.eagleeye.com
31 Chertsey Street,
Guildford,
Surrey,
GU1 4HD

